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Some of the ways we have created living
waterways, enriched lives and transformed

places during 2014/15

13
Working with the Canal & Raver

Trust will gaive our new graduates an
excellent opportumity to inspire, engage
and enthuse children about engineering
and science using the canal network 2’

Debbie Duro, Rollg-Royce

We mstalied four giant

12 tonne lock grates on the
Gloucester & Sharpness Canal to
help protect the city from flooding

With donations from our
Friends, we helped Hanover
Primary school create a
commumity garden
alongside the Regent’s
Canal in Ishngton

Thanks to funding
from Transport
for London we

were able to
transform one
of the muddiest

stretches of §

towpath in the city

We worked with volunteers to reconnect a
450-metre stretch of the Montgomery
Canal to the main canal network

We celebrated
the 200"
anmversary
of Foxton Locks




Hindu Youth Group
/: MK joined us to
! help clear up the
canal in Milton

Keynes as part of
Sewa Day

Teenagers from
Hounslow Youth
Offending Service
helped us transform
a histormc warehouse
wall in Brentford Basin

We discovered
a colony of 150
endangered
white-clawed
crayfish on the
Leeds & Liverpool
Canal in North
Yorkshire

We started work on
a new partnership
with Rolls Royce

to mspire a new
generaticn of
engmeers

| We launched a
| national campaign
to encourage people

to feed ducks a

healthier diet

13
The canal 1s a beautiful and tranquil

part of the borough that’s well worth
exploring It's fantastic that 1t’s been
made more accessible *’

Julian Bell, Leader of Ealing Council

Volunteers helped us plant a new
commumiy orchard alongside
the Monmouthshire & Brecon Canal
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Trustees’ Report & Accounts

Welcome from Tony Hales, chairman

The last three years have given me immense
satisfaction, seeing the Canal & River Trust
grow, thrive and attract ever increasing
numbers of volunteers, supporters and
partners. When we started this journey in July
2012, whilst we hoped for encouragement,

we could not have envisaged the tremendous
support and goodwill that we have received

Today our canals are better used, enjoyed, and valued than
ever before This is a truly remarkable achievernent An
estimated nearly 20 milion people visited our waterways during
last year, our volunteers gave nearly 60,000 days to help us
with our work, we secured nearly £12m from lotteries, grant
making trusts, local authorities and bodies such as the Arts
Councils to help us transform our waterways and museums
into wibrant places full of life and energy, we now have more
than 11,000 Friends, people who generously support us with
their monthly donations, cur youth programmes are helping
young people connect with thewr local canal and develop new
skills that will help them as they move into work or continue
in education, we have eleven strong regional partnerships
helping us to drive change forward and put our canals at the
centre of local decision-making, innovative arts programmes
are ennching our network taking cultural programmes into
diverse communities unserved by tradiional routes, more
than 43,000 children took part in one of our Explorer events
last year alone | could go on

There are always challenges The weather, for one, sometimes
our fnend and occasionally our foe, heavily )/mpacts on our
resources as we strive to keep our waterways, towpaths and
infrastructure in the best possible condiion We also need

to continue to be imaginative in how we raise funds, to be
prudent in how we spend our finite resources and to continue
to manage our land and properties carefully The strong
commercial performance In the year not only allowed increases
duning the year 1n chantable expenditure, not least to waterway
maintenance but also strengthened our balance sheet to
create a more secure future for our waterways so they can
centinue to be used and enjoyed by future generations

Our new strategy has people at its heart and | am delighted
that so many new people are getting involved with our work
either as volunteers or partners They bring with them new
perspectives and expenences which benefit us all

And | am so grateful to the Trust's staff who, under the
leadership of Richard Parry, have embraced both challenge
and change M s thanks to their energy that we have been

able to achieve all that we have in such a short space of time
John Bridgeman retired during the year as a Trustee, and Philip
Ridal and Simon Salem are retinng as directors, my thanks to
them for a tremendous contribution over many years

| shall alse retire from the Board after our annual public
meeting 1n September Over the years, | have worked with
some very talented and committed people bath within the Trust
and amongst our many stakeholders We could never have
achieved the transformation from government corporation to
pubhc Trust without such a truly remarkable team effort

113
Our new strategy has people at 1ts heart

and I am dehighted that so many new
people are getting mvolved with our
work erther as volunteers or partners i

Personally, | have enjoyed meeting so many people around

the country and seeing how our once forgotten and

neglected waterways have morphed into community hubs,
bringing people together, improving lives, and providing new
opportunities for all ages to expenence their beauty and indeed
therr Ifestyle benefits whether in town or country

A really big thanks to everyone - staff, volunteers, supporters,
partners — without you it just couldn't have been done

Tony Hales CBE
30 June 2015




Introduction from Richard Parry,
chief executive

When the Trust was first conceived, those
involved must have hoped for something like
the year we have enjoyed - a strong financial
foundation; growing interest in visiting,
caring for, and using our canals and rivers;
and an ever-widerung range of relationships
with third parties willimg to promote, fund
and support us.

| joined the Trust in 2013 inspired by the opportunity to secure
the waterways' long-term future and to make them central

to publc Ife, re-cennecting them te pecple and places — as
sources of tranquillity, well-being, leisure and prospernty Whilst
we know there 1s much mare we can do, the progress we have
made shows what is possible, and sets out a clear path ahead

Last year we announced an ambitious néw vision for the Trust
- lwing waterways that transform places and ennch lives - that
speaks to the wader outcomes we can shape, and a 10-year
strategy for realising this vision Our Grant Agreement with
Defra gives us firm funding until 2027, providing the platform
from which we can look far into the future and plan confidently
for the waterways, free from the sort of short-term intervention
our predecessors suffered

As a first step towards realising our strategy, we introduced

a new organisational structure putting customer service and
community involvernent at the heart of our work It re-focusses
our local teams on the delivery of good day-to-day service,

with close, active relationships with boaters and the many other
people who use our waterways |t puts volunteenng at the heart
of our work, attracting more volunteers into more roles, and
strengthens the work of our Waterways Partnerships in forging
vital local links, identifying new opportunities to make the canals
relevant and valued by communiies Alongside this, the creation
of national asset management, delivery and technical teams
gives us the ability to deliver more work, more efficiently

Our success depends upon our people, | am proud of what
they have done this year, and the encouraging way they have
embraced the changes | was especially pleased to see the
near universal recogntion of our new vision and values, and
widespread understanding of how they apply Our growing
numbers of volunteers inspire us with therr passion and
dedication as they remind us how privileged we are to be
the custodians of such a treasured asset

Our financial strength underpins everything we plan to do and
| applaud the performance of our Property and Commercial
teams in generating around £15m more income than planned,
and the success of our Enterprise team in securing additronal
third-party contnbutions durning the year

With such healthy financial performance, we could both
spend £3m more than we planned to on our waterways during
2014/15 (including £1m on locat beating and customer prionty
works} and generate a surplus that will be carned forward to
fund more work in the future

Whilst it 1s stil early in the development of our charitable
fundraising, our success with charitable foundations (such as
Esmée Farrbairn and the Wolfson Trust), and our first major
individual donation {from the Desmond Foundation for the
Coast to Coast canoe trail) 1s hugely encouraging, alongside
the growth in our indmwidual giving programme

This year has also seen us grow in influence The Government
announcement in September that, following cur campaign with
the IWA, HS2 would be adopting our proposed re-alignment of
the route at Fradley Junction to reduce its impact on the canal,
was clear ewidence of the mpact we can have on a national
scale when the waterway community works together

We will shortly be saying farewell to our Charr, Teny Hales Tony
has been a passionate advocate and supporter of our waterways
and has done an outstanding job in leading the transition from
Bntish Waterways to the Trust, and in these criical first few
years His commitment and enthusiasm will be greatly missed
and we are very grateful for everything he has done

As this report shows, we have achieved much in the past year
We know there 1s much more to do, and many challenges
ahead Our ambitious new wision, and the 10-year strategy
that underpins it, sets out the future trajectory for the Trust,

to secure the sustamnable future that all those who care for our
inland waterways long to see

Richard Parrva)

30 June 2015

Canal & River Trust Annuat Report 2014/15
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Trustees’ Report & Accounts
Strategic Report of the Trust (pages 4 to 59)

Overview of 2014/15

We care for an extraordinary collection of waterways, holding them in trust for the nation in
perpetuity. This ineludes 2,000 miles of canals, rivers, docks and reservoirs; the third largest
collection of listed buildings and structures in the UK, 63 Sites of Special Scientific Interest;
over 1,000 wildlife conservation sites; and canals and structures within five UNESCO world
heritage sites, together with our museums and archuves. Caring for such a historic and
fragile infrastructure requires considerable maintenance, care and attention to ensure future
generations are able to appreciate and enjoy them.

Raising our funds

We raise income through a vanety of sources, from our Friends,
statutory bodies, lotteries, boating customers and by developing
our land and property to improve our canals for the benefit of
both the local commumity and for investment purposes

Our boating customers, both indivduals and businesses,
make a significant contribution to the care of our waterways
through boat icensing and varnious agreements for rights over,
or the use of, our waterways In 2014/15, this amounted to
£33 8m (2014 £32 4m) which includes income from the
provision of 3,685 (2104 3,637) directly managed moorings
and income from business boating customers including trade
licences, connection and network access agreements

We also generate significant revenue from our utiibes business,
which in 2014/15 contnbuted £26 1m (2014 £24 7m) to
looking after the canals and rvers \n our care We secure
payments from companes and individuals who use our surplus
water, who drain into our waterways or who use land that we
own as a condunt for pipes and cables We are also exploring
new ways 1n which our waterways can contribute to the
delivery of sustainable energy solutions, including hydro power,
wind and heating and cooling of bulldings and expect this
achivity to grow over the coming years

We own a significant endowment of investment assets valued
at £616 3m (2014 £507 1m} which 1s managed o generate
income and caprtal returns to the Trust Currently, the bulk of
the endowment portfolio 1s invested i property, reflecting the
legacy powers of our predecessor body The income 1s used
for looking after the waterways, and any capital returns are
retained and invested to generate future long term income

In 2014/15, we generated £46 4m (2014 £41 9m) of income
from the endowment investment portfolio and earned a

total return {income and captal) of 21 & % (2014 15 3%),
comfortably ahead of the market benchmark

Qur commerctal actvibes are overseen by the Investment
Committee, a sub-committee of the Board of Trustees, which
compnses four Trustees and two external voluntary experts with
property and corporate finance backgrounds Dunng the year
we implemented our proposals to diversify part of the portfolio
away from property investments into other investment sectors
The funds invested during the year, totaling £80m, were placed
using an outgourced investment office arrangement under a
services agreement with Partners Capital The valuation of the
non-property fund as at March 2015 stood at £86 7m

British Waterways Marinas Limited (BWML} 1s a wholly owned
subsidiary which owns and manages a portfolio of 19 mannas
of which three are coastal BWML was created in 2004 and

1s run according to a fair trade protocol, the main principle of
which 1s that BWML should operate at arm’s length from the
Trust and not be party to privileged Trust information that is not
avalable to marina operators generally BWML income grew
by 7 5% during the year to £7 1m and it has continued to
improve its level of manna berth occupancy BWML continues
to invest in improving s customer service and the standards
in its marinas to ensure that competitive facilities

are offered

11
overgrowth was cleared from aver 97

miles of canal bank, 24% more than m
2013714




Caring for our canals & rivers

Many of our waterways were built at the height of the industrial
revolution, over 200 years agoe Our mantenance work is
dwerse and challenging, but the benefits we deliver to the
people who use our waterways makes it vital and rewarding

Our staff and contractors worked hard throughout the year to
ensure that our waterways are in good condition, safe to use
and deliver a range of environmental, social and economic
benefits All of this activity 1s supported by our detalled Asset
Management Plan and its ngorous inspection regme We are
pleased to report that the proporhion of principal assets n the
worst condition grades D and E has reduced from 14 7 per
cent to 14 1 per cent, in spite of the damage wreaked by the
floods and in addition to the 3,420 planned defect repairs we
also completed a further 11,167 unplanned defect reparrs,
14,587 (2014 14,864} n total

. This year we spent over £130m on our charitable activities,
notably the repair and maintenance of our waterways and
the thousands of structures and facilities that make up the
network, including reservorrs, aqueducts, locks, bridges,
towpaths, culverts and embankments We spent £18m
(2014 £18 4m) on the larger waterway infrastructure projects

Durning the year we spent £10 8m {2014 £9 7m) clearing
and maintaining towpaths, removing invasive species and
grafft Overgrowth was cleared from over 97 miles of canal
bank, 24% more than in 2013/14, to help mprove conditions
for boaters and walkers, and we undertook dredging on 50
miles of waterway, remowving 130,000 tonnes of silt

13
our ‘Canal Adoption’ programme almost
doubled to 104 Adoptions ??

Growing support

Our volunteers generously gave over 410,000 (2014 359,000)
hours of therr time (equivalent to 58,774 days) duning 2014/15
The value of their work to the Trust equates to over £6 5m

And our 'Cana! Adoption’ programme almost doubled to

104 Adoptions

We secured funding from a number of new sources including
£249,000 from the Esmee Farrbairn Foundation and
£100,000 from players of the People's Postcode Lottery for
a transformative environmental and community engagement
programme in Birmingham, Huddersfield and Rochdale

We also had a number of successes with our bids to the
Hertage Lottery Fund

* Secuning development funding of over £262,000 as part of
our £2m bid to restore Finsley Gate Wharf, one of the oldest
wharves on the Leeds & Liverpool Canal

* A stage 1 pass for our £1 4m plans to restore Carpenter's
Road Lock in the heart of the Queen Ehzabeth Il Olympic Park

[13
Cur volunteers generously gave over

410,000 hours of their time

* £830,000 in partnership with Grantham Canal Society for a
five-year project to bring locks 14 and 15 back into working
use and train volunteers in conservation skills

We also raised over £200,000 through film projects including
Mission impossible 5, the latest James Bond, the Alice in
Wonderland sequel, Peaky Blinders, Wolf Hall, Barging
Around Britain and Great Canal Journeys, 1o name just a few

We increased our number of followers on Twitter by 40%
and on Facebook by 165%, and lively interesting content on
our website attracts an average of 176,299 visits to the site
per month

Our museums are home to the nationally important inland
waterways collechon and archives Together, they offer a
valuable insight into the history of our waterways Durning
2014/15 there were nearly 230,000 visits to our museums
and attractions

We also completed a number of important re-development
projects dunng the year including major bulding work at the
Canal Museum, Stoke Bruerne, opening a new exhibrtion at the
National Wafterways Museum focused on history of the site’s
port town, Ellesmere Port and the sympathetic refurbishment of
the museum's Porter's Row We also completed the first phase
of a major project work to improve access to the nationally
important waterways archives 37,000 records and over 22,000
histonc images are now avallable digitally for the first time

13
we spent over £130m on our charitable
activities, notably the repair and mamtenance
of our waterways

Canal & River Trust Annual Report 2014/15
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Financial summary

Resources expended on
charitable activities (£m)

Other N e \
£5 4m ’ | Mamtenance,
/ p repairs and
Allocated N minor works
support @ K £19.9m
costs N !
£12 4m L e

Museums and
attractions
£31m
Waterway o
regeneration

and restoration
£13 5m

Major
infrastructure
works
£18.0m

£136.9m

National
operational,
technical and
engineenng
teams

£8 2m
Vegetation, waste and
contract management
£113m

Training, safety,
volunteering
management,

travel, etc
£18 4m Dredging ol
£6 8m
£10 7m
Customer
service and
facilithes

£9.2m




Income for maintenance,
restoration and museums

£190m
/o
S
Incoming
resources (Em) -

Investment
mncome
£46 Am

Utility income
and water sales
£26.1m

Investments (£m)

Other incoming
resources

Donations
E7 5m £16m B -
@ Q //’ \
A /
S Defra arant
\ funding
£320m

£180.5m

Boat licences
and moonngs
£33 8m

Income from marnas
operated by BWML
£71m

Retall
property Ground rents
60 Om £222 4m
' 4 Other property
Residential v, E43m
property
£89m £616.3m
Growth
N property
) £44 2m
- .
Offica '
property
£67 Om Boating property
£29 Om
D ified fund
Industrial s;:;sml nes
property
£856m

Agncultural
O it
£15m
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You can keep your cuckoos.
We hear Spring’s first song

in the sound of the angle grinders,
brazen as a mating call

Jo Bell, Canal Laureats
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Spring

T

Caring for 2,000 miles of canals, rivers, docks and reservoirs and providing a great
experience for the millions of people visiting these waterways is quite a challenge. Which is
why we are so0 glad to be supported by the hundreds of volunteers who turned out during
the Spring, rain or shine, {o help get our towpaths and canals ready for the millions of
people who flock to our waterways 1n the warmer months, the difference they make to our

work and visitor experience 18 priceless.

QOur fragille waterways are subjected to the ravages of the
weather and need constant care and attention In Apnl we
were able to reopen the Monmouthshire & Brecon Canal

at Llanfoist following a £1m repair job, which included driving
500 15-metre long ‘pins’ into the bedrock beneath the
waterway, in time for the Easter break and the start of the
main boating season

In May experts from across the country attended our annual
restoration conference As well as shanng best practce,
delegates looked at the challenges encountered during
restoration projects and how these could be overcome
Guest speakers also explered the social, environmental and
economic benefits that canal restoration projects can bring
to an area

Spring 1s when the waterways come alive with an array

of wildife We believe this waterway wildlife needs to be
protected and cared for As well as adding to the biodiversity
of our canals and nivers, these creatures provide opportunities
for people, many of whom live in urban areas, to have direct
experience of our natural world We are always looking for
new ways to help people discover more about creatures that
make their homes in and alongside our canals and the work
that we do to look after them Highlights include

* In April we were delighted to welcome flagship children's
television programme, Blue Peter to our fish rescue on the
Dudley Canal when we moved thousands of fish to safety
in advance of canal reparrs

* We worked with primary school pupils from Rugby to create a
pond for the new wildlife-themed children's area at Crick Boat
Show 1 May The pond provided a wonderful opportunity for
hundreds of children wisiting the show to discover more about
the canal environment

* Qur volunteers completed a 600-mile long survey of cur
ancient hedgerows to identify their physical condition, how
and where they could be improved and what habitats, food
sources and safe travel routes they provide for wildlife

* The players of People's Postcode Lottery supported our
project to reparr and re-plant a 220 metre stretch of the Leeds
& Liverpool Canal This work will help unite colonies of water
voles and thereby increase therr long-term chances of survival

* In May we launched our annual Great Nature Watch survey
The focus of the survey was damselflies and dragonfies Our
ecologists were concerned that the weather over the winter,
which was the wettest on record, might have had a lasting
mpact on these creatures as fluctuating river levels and fast
flowing currents wash away therr larvae

Following a search far the owner of a First World War medal
found at the bottom of a drained canal, in June, we helped unite
a farmily for the very first time The Victory Medal was found
near Rotherham where we were replacing lock gates Through
research, social media and articles in the local media, we tned
to identify the onginal owner and found two branches of the
same family who had never previously met

In May, we hosted three debates at the internationally
renowned Hay Festival Led by experts from lferature, the
press, hertage and volunteering, the discussions explored
different aspects of our waterways — from their role in
Interature to the value of therr hentage and how to engage
new volunteers

(11
We are always lookmg for new ways to

help people discover more about creatures
that make their homes 1n and alongside
our canals and the work that we do to lock
after them ’?




Damsefflies
and dragonflies
were the focus

of our annual
Great Nature
Watch survey

1
the dafference they make

to our work and wisitor
experience 1s priceless 2

School children help
create wildife pond
at Cnck Boat Show

Blue Peter with
Canal & River
Trust staff

Our volunteers
help take care
of our waterways

Volunteers surveyed
600 mules of hedgerow

First World War
medal discovered
in Rotherham canal
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Case study:
Marks & Spencer: Rachel Barton, M&S

In April, we were joined by more than 850
staff from Marks & Spencer who helped

clear 8,800kg of rubbish from 56 miles of
towpath and canal This was the second time
staff from one of the UK's most popular retail
chains had partnered with the Canal & River
Trast as part of their annual ‘Big Beach
Clean Up’

“At Marks & Spencer we take the matter of being a
responsible retailler serously In 2012 we introduced Plan A
2020 and we are now working towards 100 commitments
with the ultmate goal of becoming the world's most
sustainable major retailer

“The Big Beach Ciean-Up s part of our Forever Fish
programme This annual beach and waterway clean-up 1s a
great way for us to support and connect with the community
and the natural environment around our stores Clean
waterways and beaches mean clean seas These events are a
simple, fun way for our employees and customers to volunteer
and make a difference

“As well as offering Marks & Spencer the opportunity to work
in urban and rural locations across England and Wales, the
Canal & Rwver Trust gives us the night type of experience we
were looking for We want our employees to have a great
time as well as doing some good for the planet!

“Everyone enjoys taking part in the annual clean-up campaign
and we've found it reafly makes people think about the 1ssues
of iitter "

13
The Bag Beach Clean-Up 18 a great way

for us to support and connect with the
community and the natural environment
around our stores >

Rachel Barton, M&S

Volunteers from Marks & Spencer at work

Volunteering facts

* 104 community groups, youth clubs, canal sccieties, parish
councils and businesses adopted and cared for a stretch of
canal in 2014/15

* 720 men and women applied to jon the Trust as volunteer
lock keepers this year

* We we have increased the number of ‘Lead Volunteers' —
trained volunteers In recognised positions of responsibility
in the Trust — o over 70

* Staff from businesses such as Barclays, Yorkshire Water,
United Utilies, Mace Group and Salesforce generously
donated their tme and funding towards a range of
volunteering projects across the country dunng 2014/15

¢ We held our first Volunteer Awards in parinership
with the Marsh Christian Trust Volunteers Emule Khan,
Dylan Manning, John Hawkins and David Payne were
all recogrised for their hard wark and enthugtasm




Case study:

The story of our fish

— John Ellis, national

fisheries & angling manager

A thriving population of fish provides

many benefits — they enhance the natural
environment, provide a food source for other
species and encourage people to visit our
waterways. Angling is also one of the UK’s
most popular activities.

“One of our biggest projects thus year was relocating
thousands of fish, including a 3ft long carp weighing 25lbs,
from Regent’s Canal before our maintenance teams got to
work During 2014/15 there were also two major pollution
incidences caused by businesses alongside the Trent &
Mersey Canal and the Grand Union Canal Our emergency
teams reacted quickly and whilst large numbers were lost
we were able to rescue and protect many thousands mare

“Essential work such as dredging alsc has the potential to
affect the safety of our fish To find out more about this impact
we worked closely with our fishenes management contractor
to develop a new survey technique to assess the effect of
dredging on eel populations

“Planned fish rescues, as opposed to emergency events,
provide a fantastic opportunity for children, and adulis, to
discover more about our canals and ther amazing wildhfe
In 2014 we introduced Fish Education Days where school
groups join our experts at a fish rescue These days have
been very popular with local schools 127 children took part
in our pilot programme and we will be expanding this inthative
over the coming year

“As well as being a major environmental asset, canals and
rivers are a national anghng resource The sportis also a
super way to get people involved with and canng for our
canals Together with the Angling Trust, in 2014 we launched
the Canal Angling Championships and included a junior
section to attract younger people We are also working wath
angling clubs, partners and stakeholders to develop Fisheries
& Angling Actions Plans for each waterway and identify the
top priorities for this area for the next decade "

Fish facts

* To replace all the fish in our canals and nvers would cost
£40 milion

¢ There are aver 40 species of fish in our waterways, nine
of which are protected by law

* The Trust i1s the largest owner of fishing nghts in England
& Wales

= Over 1,000 children and adults tried thewr hand at fishing
through our Angling Taster events

= The world's oldest angling club, Salford Friendly Angling
Society, became our newest club customer in March 2015

1]
Together wath the Anglhing Trust, in

2014 we launched the Canal Angling
Championships and included a junuor
section to attract younger people »

John Ells,
national fisheries & angling manager

School children enjoying a Fish Education Day

Canat & River Trust Annual Report 2014/15
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Longer days and warmer weather encourage more people to discover our waterways. In Juns,
we wera thrilled to welcome our patron, His Royal Highness the Prince of Wales to Stolke on
Trent. The Prince met trainees taking part in our youth social action project on the Caldon
Canal and during a boat trip from Etruria to Middleport, Hns Royal Highness discovered more
about the history of the Trent & Merssy Canal and regeneration plans for the waterway.

We believe passionately in the value that restored waterways
can bring to communities both economically and socially In
July we launched a campaign to encourage more people to-
get behind therr local canat restoration The campaign, backed
by Sir Tony Robinson, TV presenter and histonan, coincided
with the release of a report from the University of Nothngham
which highlighted how restored canals bring prosperity to
communities, boast property prices and help people lead

a more active and healthy ifestyle

Our canals also offer a valuable way to take art and literature
direct to communities who aren't normally able to access the
amazing opportunities that these programmes offer Cur

art on the waterways programme 1s continuing to attract
new audiences to our canals and inspire existing visitors
Highlights include

¢ The naugural Floating Cinema tour from June — August
The project brought over 40 high qualdy film, arts, music
and educational expenences to London’s waterways

o In July proneering folk group, the Dead Rat Orchestra,
held a floating tour which musically charted the Thames and
Kennet & Avon Canal between Londen, Oxford and Bnstol

° As part of Milton Keynes International Festival, BAFTA
award-winning sound arhist and composer, Kaffe Matthews,
created an exhibition of the sounds and stones collected
from a solo recording walk along the Grand Union Canal

e Clay Cargo, a three-year arts programme inspired by
ceramics and canal pioneer, Josiah Wedgewood also
got underway this year

Following the success of our Winter ‘open days', in July we
launched a summer programme Keeping our waterways open
and working 1s a year round effort, and this new programme
enabled wisitors to see what 1s involved in some of our larger
engineering and construction projects The first summer
open day was held in London at the 1929 pumping station
that's used tc regulate water levels between the Waest India
and Millwall Docks Visitors were able to see the skilled
craftsmanship involved with the restoration project and talk to
our experts about the reparrs and how the impounding station
helps our waterways today

It 1s wtal that we ensure the reliability of our precious water
resources In September, as part of our future planning

we launched our first public consultation on how we
should plan and manage our water resources looking as
far ahead as 2050, and considering future pressures such
as new legislation, chmate change and increased use of
the waterways The responses received from customers,
stakeholders and businesses are helping to shape our
Woater Resources Strategy, which will set out the detaled
plan of work for the next five years

Our first Living Waterways Awards programme celebrated
the work being done across the UK to transform waterways
into vibrant places and ennch people's lives 26 projects
from across England and Wales were recognised through
the awards and we were pleased to have had the opportunity
to publically commemorate the work done by Sonia Rolt by
awarding her the first Outstanding Achievement Award

Two new trustees joined our Board in September Allan
Leighton and Ben Gordan both have extensive business and
commercial experence, and along with the rest of the Board,
have already brought ther wider experience to help shape our
future strategy and key objectives for the next ten years

In September, the All Party Parhamentary Group for the
Waterways published its second report into the progress of
the Trust since its creation in 2012 The report noted how we
have extended our range of funding streams, increased the
number of volunteers involved with our work and how we are
tackhng historic mooring problems
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Great British Bike CIF -- Bd Helps, menaging

director, ABC Lelsure

Since we held our first challenge event mn
August 2012, over ££0,C0C has been raised
for the Trust by our charity cyclists. The
2014 ride saw our team cycle from London to
Leeds, taking in soma of the stages mcluded
in tha Tour de Frenca.

Ed Helps, a member of the South Wales & Severn Waterways
Partnership, has taken part in every charity nde since the Trust
was launched in 2012

“| love our waterways, I've been using them for most of my
Iife, they've opened up some amazing opportunies for me
As a teenager | learned to canoe on the canals around
London which led to me competing m races all over the
country Later, | got involved in restering the Droitwich Canal,
which 1s close to where | live, and I've spent many years
walking and boating on the canals with my family | now
run a canal boat hire business, so | suppose one way or
another, waterways have always been part of my ife

“I really believe we need to look after our canals and nvers,
they can make such a difference to your !ife and | want
future generations to have the opportunities that | did, so
| volunteered to take part in the Canal & River Trust’s first
chanty bike nde and help raise money to do just this

“Pve now taken part in three Great British Bike Offs, which,
including the training, have seen me travel around 3,000 miles
on two wheels | have seen some new areas of the country,
including the tops of some hills | would ordinarly avoid!

And I've also met some great people

“As well as raising funds to support a cause very close to
my heart, the events give me a focus They make me stop
work, get out on my bike and keep fit | have also enjoyed
the challenge and experience of each trip, which 1s why |
keep coming back!”
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Fundraising facts

o During 2014/15 our regular givers donated nearly £440,000
to help care for our waterways

e Major donors contributed over £272,000 towards special
projects to help create lving waterways and enrich lives

o We secured just under £218,000 from trusts, grant-making
bodies and chantable societies

° We raised over £460,000 from corporate partners {including
gifts in kind}

o Statutory bodies including local authorties, Department
for Transport, Arts Council England and the Hentage
Lottery Fund contributed £11,764,000 to help us transform
our places
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Ve have foo third largesi collection of listed
stiructures in tho UX. t 18 imperative that
thess el bulldings, lecks and brndges
vre sxpevily corcd for, howeaver there1s 2
dwindling peol of skilled watesrray heritage
cireftspeople to do this

In partnership with the Hentage Craft Allance, we created

a bespoke hertage skills training programme, funded by the
Heritage Lottery Fund and The Radchffe Trust Over the course
of the three-and-a-half year long programme, 42 trainees will
work alongside our staff learning the skills needed to care for
our 200-year old structures On-the-job traning 1s supplemented
with time at the Hentage Craft Allance's traiming centre in
Bedale As well as substantial practical expenence, trainees

will firish the course with an NVQ Level 2 qualification

Hayley joined the Trust as a heritage skills trainee in September
Hawing previously traned in horticulture, Hayley was looking for

a change of career

“l ive on a boat Canals and their bulldings and structures
fascinate me | love working outdoors, this traiming course
sounded a great way to broaden my honzons, develop new
skills and build on my love of old buildings

“l work as part of the team here, I'm not treated any differently
I've learned so much about hentage and conservation since
starting the programme, it's given me lots of opportuniies to
work on different projects and buildings I'm learning more
than | thought | would At college we've been learming timber
work, masonry and stone carving We're also learning how
to deal with the public and lots of other ife skills

“I'm so fortunate to be based on the Lancaster Canal, there are
lots of scheduled monuments and hsted builldings The work

is so rewarding, | feel really privileged to be able to work on
these structures | love it, even when I'm standing knee-deep
in silt in a canal in November repointing brckwork!”

o

) 62}
PIFIA Y S J\JJ)W) ALST_EE O

Ferere fects

N
PEPE\Y 3N

Nedoye

TrELNEE

° We achieved more than 98% compliance on 177 jobs
affecting designated heritage assets

o In partnership with Historic England and Department for
Communities and Local Government we are developing
a National Listed Building Consent Qrder

© Qver 100 previously unrecorded hertage assets along
the Menmouthshire & Brecon Canal were identified by a
team of hentage volunteers undertaking an Architectural
Heritage Survey

o Qur heritage volunteers gave more than 1,700 hours of
their time to help us with our work
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Autumn

After months of planning, we introduced a new organisational structure in November. The
changes aim to improve the way we work and to bring us closer to the many communities
that live on and along our waterways. As part of the new structure we appointed our first
head of customer service, and our waterway managers, working together with our waterways
partnerships, are now able to focus more on building links with boaters, local people,

businesses and decision-makers.

Championing and protecting our waterway heritage 1s a key
area of our work Following a joint campaign with the Inland
Waterways Association, in Octoberthe Secretary of State for
Transport announced that the Government would be adopting
our proposals for the realignment of the proposed route for
HS2 The new route will avoid precious heritage sites at
Fradley, near Lichfield and ensure the restoration of the
Lichfield Canal can continue

Volunteers are helping to preserve some of our more

unusual canalside bulldings On the Kennet & Avon Canal,

a team of dedicated volunteers have carefully restored an
abandoned nineteenth century hovel which was onginally used
by canal workers And on the Bndgwater & Taunton Canal
volunteers have transformed a former World War |l pillbox
into a wildlife haven

We want to ensure a sustainable future for our waterways
and, guided by our Green Plan, we constantly review how we
work to ensure we are being as environmentally sustainable
as possible In October we were awarded the Carbon Trust
Standard in recognition of our achievements in reducing our
carbon footprint We reached this goal a year ahead of our
planned target and the Trust was ‘Best in Sector’ in eight out
of 13 categones Between 2012 and 2014 we cut emissions
by 13 & per cent, this 1s equivalent to an annual reducticn of
around 3,000 tonnes of carbon dioude

In October we celebrated the completion of a £4 5m

project to restore Sutton Weaver Swing Bridge in Cheshire
Jointly funded by Cheshire West and Chester Councll, the
Department of Transport and the Trust, the 88-year ald swing
bridge, which carries around 20,000 vehicles a day, has been
repaired, refurbished and repainted, extending its life by over
50 years

As part of our annual restoratron and repair programme,

we 'pulled the plug' on the Regent's Canal, draining 75 million
gallons of water from the waterway tn advance of major work
This event marked the start of our £45million winter restoration
programme From November to March over 9,000 people
visited one of our 16 open days — our special events where
visitors can see work underway and talk to our skilled staff
about how we keep our waterways in working order 200 years
after they were built

Redevelopment of redundant land alongside our canals

offers valuable opportunities to attract new life and businesses
to these locations In November we unveilled exciting plans
for a £20m development at on the Grand Urion Canal

at Wharfedale Park, Birmingham The plans will see the
creation of high specification build-to-surt warehouse and
manufactuning units With our partner, Fiddle & Bone Ltd,

we put the fimishing touches to the regeneration of the derelict
Fiddle & Bone pub near Bnndleyplace, Birmngham The
transformed site includes new boating faciiies as well as a
restaurant and bar Our joint ventures continue to deliver new
developments next to our waterways, including at Brentford,
Lancaster and Marsworth where land 1s being transformed
into attractive places to live

In 2012 we introduced a new apprenticeship programme in
partnershup with Leeds Callege of Bulcing The aum of the
programme was to train young people in the skills we need
to keep our waterways in excellent condition In October

20 apprentices successfully completed therr intermediate
apprenticeships and qualfied as erther bricklayers or joiners
65% of the group have now moved into full time positions
within the Trust

T
In October we were awarded the Carbon Trust

Standard 1n recognmition of our achievements
1n reducing our carbon footprint »
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Case study:

Canals on prescription — Dr Moreton’s story

With hundreds of miles of waterways passing
through towns, villages and cities, our canals
and rvers are ideally located to help local
communities to improve their health and
wellbeing. Towpaths provide opportunities for
gentle walks, cycling or running and it is wel
documented that being by water has a positive
impact on emotional and mental health.

A donation from Buckinghamshire GF, Dr Moreton, meant we
could resurface the footpath around Weston Turville Reservorr
Following completion of the work in November, Dr Moreton's
former practice started 'prescribing' the walking route to help
patients lower ther blood pressure, fight depression and
combat lung conditions

“Everyone knows that regular exercise 1s key to lving a happy
and healthy hfe but there i1s also evidence that shows that
being by a 'blue space’ can improve our general sense of
wellbeing and reduce stress

“| wanted to encourage people lming in Wendover, Weston
Turville and Halton to walk more in order to benefit their health
which 15 why | made the donation to the Canal & Rwer Trust
The new walk 1s accessible to more peaple, It 1s on the flat so
helps people with heart and lung conditions and the beauty
and proximity to water and nature will help everyone's sense
of wellbeing, particularly those with mental health problems
And the best part is it's free

“Regular exercise 1s particularly important for older people
who may have problems with mobility or arthriis The fact
that that the walk 1s In a beautrful place close to water will
be appreciated by everyone but also means that it may be of
specific help for patients coping with anxiety or depression ”

Towpaths are 1deal places to cycle, walk or run

Dr Philippa Moreton on the resurfaced path at Weston Turville Resarvoir

13
The fact that that the walk 1s 1n a beautaful

place close 1o water will be appreciated by
everyone but also means that 1t may be
of specific help for patients coping with
anxiety or depression

Dr Moreton, Buckinghamshire GP

Health & wellbeing facts

» With support from our pariners, nearly 32 miles of towpath
across England & Wales were upgraded, 35% more than
the previous year, creating betier access and making it easier
for people to walk, run or cycle alongside our canals

» We set up a new project in East Lancashire to help
disadvantaged groups discover the therapeubhc benefits
of our waterways

* We launched a two-year partnerstup with Sport England
o pilot an exciting sports parbicipation programme on our
canals in the South East Our aim 1s to help 3,000 people
become more active and healthier
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Case study:
Looking after boaters
- Sean Williams, boater welfare officer

Canals were built for boats, transporting goods
from place to place and providing homes for
the people who worked on our waterways.
Today they still do the same; in fact more
boats are using our waterways now than did
so at the height of the industrial revolution.

Holidays, day-trips or even as permanent
homes, our canals provide a unique lifestyle to
a myriad of communities and we are working
hard to make sure everyone using our

waterways has a great experience.

Sometimes our customers can experience significant financial
or health 1ssues In November we appointed our first boater
wellare officer, Sean Willams, to help respond to boaters who
find themselves in such difficulties

“We've seen a significant increase in the number of live-
aboard boaters on our canals so it's not unusual for our
enforcement teams to encounter people who are struggling
etther financially or with health issues I'm here to support
those affected by these kinds of problems, te signpost them
to places where they can get help I've built up a network
of connections with charihes, Citizens Advice and local
authonties and I'm putting together guidelines so that locat
teams can direct people to the relevant support agency

“If a boater 1s in trouble we will work with various teams
within the Trust to see f we can find a solution i there 1s
say a medical need then we can look at options such as an
‘approved over stay’ for their moorning This means that rather
than having to move cn, as ther licence requires, they can
stay where they are temporarily whilst they continue with
medical treatment "

13
Living on a boat 18 a major hifestyle choice

and people are really passionate about thie
way of hife It's a great feeling when I'm

able to help someone carry on and czontmue
to Iive independently on our canals ’

Sean Williams, boater welfare officer

Boating facts

* There are over 32,700 powered boats {up nearly 1% on
2013/14) on our waterways, moare than durning the industnal
revolution These, together with the many rowing boats,
skiffs, cances, kayaks, paddle boards and coracles create a
colourful spectacle of vehicles being used on our waterways

¢ There are nearly 2,300 ‘business boats' on our waterways
offenng a range of goods and services, from holiday hire
to selling cheese & coal In 2014/15, business ficences
generated over £2m to help us care for our waterways

* Almost 1,000 people have attended our ‘open boater
meetings' with our chief executive, Richard Parry

¢ New initiatives such as regular industry meetings and more
frequent email newsletters are helping us to keep up-to-date
with 1ssues important to boaters

* There were over 3 Bmillion ‘lockages’ last year (passages
through locks) Average lock use increased 2% dunng 2014
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Sean Willams boater weliare officer
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Winter

With fewer boats travelling along our waterways, we use the quieter winter period to repair
and restore our canals and rivers. Key projects completed this year include the installation
of a permanent weir at Dogshead Stake on the River Kennet near Newbury, repairing the
reservoir at Denton in the East Midlands and repairmmg Chirk and Whitecastle tunnels on

the Llangollen Canal.

Spechalist contractors helped clean up Ponteysyllite Aqueduct
At 126ft high and 1,000ft long the Grade | listed aqueduct 1s
Britain's longest and highest The specialist teams abseiled
down the structure to clear unwanted vegetation including

Ivy, moss, weeds and even some young saplings, helping to
preserve i for generations to come

We are warking with local authonties, transport bodies and
the Mayor of London to encourage more people to make

use of their local towpath As part of the Greater Manchester
Cycle City programme in March we started work on upgrading
8km of towpath to an all-weather path from Piccadilly Basin in
Manchester city centre to Portland Basin in Ashton-under-Lyne
The City Cycle programme aims to to increase and improve
cycling infrastructure in the area Our work will also include
widening the towpath where necessary and improving access
points to the canal for pedestrians and cyclists

Increasing numbers of people are using our towpaths to
commute to work or school, to get fit or to simply enjoy the
environment So many different activiies can lead to conflicts
In February we launched our 'Better towpaths for everyone’
policy Outhming our commitment to encouraging more people
to use these car-free routes, the document details our plans
to ntroduce better signage at key locations and to roll out
successful tnal intiatives to address behaviour on towpaths

It 1s witally tmporiant that we ensure our waterways survive

for future generations to enjoy We are therefore developing
inspinng and accessible projects to encourage younger people
to visit, use and love our canals and nivers

* In December 2013 we made a ‘Step up to Serve’ pledge to
inspire over 2,000 young people to take postive action to
transform places and ennch hves over the next two years By
the end of March 2015, 15 months after making the pledge,
we had engaged over 4,000 young people in a range of social
action projects and over 70 young volunteers now support
various teams across the Trust Key partnerships include our
vinspired Talent project tin Staffordshire, a partnership with
SLYNCS and UpRising in Blackburn, the Stratford 2 Stratford
performing arts programme, a digital consuttation project and
a survey with the Briish Youth Council to find out about young
peoples’ attitudes to social action, the waterways and the Trust

* Young people taking part in our social action project in
Staffordshire helped plant trees, reparr drystone walls,
create new pathways and remove (nvasive species Of
the 26 participants who spent six months volunteering
on the programme and were previously not in education,
employment or tramning, 85% have erther secured a job
or moved onto further traming such as an apprenticeship

= In February we launched a ground-breaking canoe project
along the Leeds & Liverpool Canal to help tackle childhood
obesity and engage more young people with our waterways
With £1 3m from the Desmond Foundation, over the next five
years we will work with 10,000 young people from some of
England's most deprived communities to transform 150 miles
of canal to create England's first Coast-to-Coast
canoe trail

Working with the National Trust, in March we launched our
first jont consultation project to look at the possibility of
redeveloping the Grade II* isted Roundhouse in Birmingham
into an urban outdoors hub Our heritage adwvisers have also
been joined by a small army of volunteers to help research the
historic 140-year old building's history

¢
we had engaged over 4,000 young people

1n a range of social action projects and over
70 young volunteers now support various
teams across the Trust >’
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We are
creating a
coast-
to-coast
canoe trail

Greater Manchester
City Cycling programme

we launched a ground-
breaking canoe project along
the Leeds & Laverpoocl Canal to
help tackle chuldhood obesity
and engage more young

people with our waterways »

Specialists at work on
Pontcysylite Aqueduct

: k We launched our 'Better
Social action in Staffordshire tow; for everyone’ policy
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Case study:
Canal & River Explorers - the Sefton team

Our Explorers education programme
provides high quality learning support for
teachers and youth leaders and has reached
unprecedented numbers of children this
year. One of our newest teams of Explorer
volunteers is based in Sefton, where a group
of five volunteers work with schools and
groups around the Leeds & Liverpool Canal.

Faith Hazelwood s the lead volunteer, along with booking
visits, she co-ordinates the team

“We try to make what we talk about as local as possible to
the school so they are actually discovenng how the coming
of the canal changed the way of Ife in their particular area
The children enjoy and discover facts in a fun and hands on
way This enhances therr learning experience

“I enjoy being with the children and { love the history of the
waterways | also enjoy hands on interpretation, from cooking
on a Victonan stove to themed-events | cannot imagine it
stopping being fun "

Les Dundon has been volunteering as part of the Sefton
Explorer team for just under a year

“I started off helping look after our local canals I've always
thought we needed to help people living nearby understand
how important our green spaces and waterways are as
somewhere to visit and get closer to nature, | therefore
jumped at the chance of volunteering with the Explorers team

“We wisit schools to run water safety, environmental and
history sesstons — bug hunts, pond dipping, buld a canal and
s0 on We also run these sessions on the towpath for school
groups visting a canal As well as this we attend local shows
such as the Mersey River Festival to raise awareness of the
Trust and to engage children with our canals in an interactive
and fun way .

“These sessions are great ways to help children discover these
wonderful green spaces and see how they can be used for
health and enjoyment

“Everything we do Is interesting and fun but the best par 1s
seeing how the children get so mvolved in what they're doing
Our work really enriches the curriculum Children enjoy the
chance to get away from therr desks, they get a real buzz
fram our activites "

Explorer facts

* We have 158 trained Explorer volunteers helping children
across England & Wales discover our canals and rivers

* Nearly 43,600 children took part in face-to-face Explorer
sessions during 2014/15

» Our Explorer volunteers gave over 11,500 hours
(or 1,644 days) to the Trust dunng 2014/15

* We created an on-line version of ‘Build a Canal’ to help
teachers and children who don't lve close to a waterway
to discover this fascinating history

* 21 locations awarded the prestigious ‘Learning Qutside the
Classroom’ Quality Badge for providing fantastic educational
vistts for schools

1
Everything we do 18 imnteresting and

fun but the best part 1s seemng how the
children get so involved 1n what they're
domng Our work really enriches the
curriculum Children enjoy the chance to
get away from their desks, they get a real
buzz from our activities >°

Les Dundon, Sefton Explorers team

Sefton Explorers team
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Case study:
Creating a Super Slow Way
— Laurie Peake, project director

One of our ambitious arts programmes,
Super Slow Way, aims to create a lasting
legacy of arts and culture in Pennine
Lancashire. In January, Laurie Peake joined
the project as director. Former durector of
Liverpool Biennial, Laurie has led major
arts projects 1n the UK and America.

“Time 1s a major theme of Super Sfow Way Taking its cue
from the Slow Movement, Super Slow Way asks how can
we use our tme more creatively It brings art and artists to
this space where time slows down, to look afresh at how
peaple live therr fast-paced lives and how they relate to therr
environment, neighbourhoods and to each other

“This Arts Council funded project aims to celebrate, unite and
excite the communihies along the Leeds & Liverpool Canal
At nts heart will be community-led commissions, which will
see people hving In the area commissioning artists to work
with them to create new ideas and opportunites, and artist
residencies, where communities and orgamsations along the
canal will be able to host artists in therr own nesghbourhoods

“Super Slow Way will spark a creative revolution on the banks
of the Leeds & Liverpool Canal, one that inspires new types
of productivity and offers opportunities to spend our time
more imaginatively, supporting existing cultural activity and
encouraging new forms My aim is to harness the arts to look
back at what shaped this area, to ask new questions about
where we are now and imagme and propose new directions
for where we are heading "

Art on the Waterways in Wales

31

Laure Peake

My aim 18 1o harness the arts to look
back at what shaped this area, to ask new
questions about where we are now and
mmagtne and propose new directions for
where we are heading a4

Laurie Peake, project director

Waterway arts facts .
= QOur waterways arts programme has attracted £3m to the
Trust n 2 ¥ years

* An independent survey revealed new visitors atiracted
to our waterways by our waterway arts programme come
from a broader demographic to the normal wisitor profile

* 98% of respondents to the survey strongly agreed that they
thought it was a good 1dea for arts events to take place on
our waterways

* 75% of survey respondents agreed that they would be
more hkely to wisit places like this if there was contemporary
art on show

Canal & River Trust Annual Report 2014/15
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Our work in Wales

The past twelve months has seen us strengthen our relationships with key pariners in Wales and
launch our ten year strategy “Beyond the Towpath.” Welsh Government recognised the ability of
waterways to deliver public policy outcomes, with a Memorandum of Understanding sponsored
by the Minister for Economy Science and Transport and backed by a cross-departmental Task and
Finish Group. We are the only Third Sector organisation to have secured this codified relationship
with Welsh Government, which is already bringing benefits to our waterways in Wales.

In June we secured £50,000 of funding from Welsh Government  We were joined by the First Minister Carwyn Jones at
to ensure the Monmouthshire & Brecon Canal reopened for the  the Royal Welsh Show in July to celebrate our second

season following the devastating winter storms birthday, and Deputy Minister Ken Skates helped mark
the launch of for our Hertage Lottery Fund Heritage Skills

In May we launched a new arist in residence programme for the Future project

in parinership with the Arts Council of Wales As well as

celebrating our waterways and the communities alongside, 2,300 children took part in an array of hands-on activities

these residencies seek to highlight the hertage and histoncal with our Canal & River Explorer volunteers at the Royal

sigmificance of canals in Wales and therr contnbution to Welsh Show, learmng about the creatures that live in our

Welsh culture canal and the best food for ducks
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Julie James AM, Deputy Minister for Skills and Technology
joned our Annual Meeting in October The event was hosted
in the Senedd and attracted representatves from a range of
charttable and not-for-profit organisations across Wales

To ensure our waterways are used, valued and enjoyed for
decades to come, we need to encourage more people o visit
and care for therr local canal Support from local communitres
1s continuing to grow, and we are dehghted to now have three
‘canal adoptions' and teams of dedicated volunteers working
on our canals in Wales

Chmate change i1s having a marked effect on our water
resources It 1s vital that we make sure these precious resources
are properly planned and managed Together with Dwr Cymru

{ Welsh Water, the Wye & Usk Foundation, Natural Resources
Wales and Severn Trent we formed the the Usk & Wye
Abstraction Group By working together we have developed

an innovative and truly sustainable outcome which will deliver
better results for the nvers' environment while protecting

the environmental, social and economic benefits of both the
Monmouthshire & Brecon Canal and public water supply

This year we also completed a number of developments at
Pontcysyllte Aqueduct and canal Woarld Heritage Site to enable
more people to discover and access the site

* We adapted a 200-year old 'roving bridge’ at the site

to

make it accessible for cyclists, wheelcharr users

and pushcharrs

* With funding from Northern Marches Rural Development
Programme (Wales) we have been able to refurtush the
listed dry-dock at Trevar Basin Debnis has been removed
from the dock and it has been repointed, has new fencing,
paintwork and paving New signage and interpretation
further enhances the site and wisitor expenence

* We publtshed the first guidebook for the site Produced
jointly with the Royal Commission on the Ancient and
Histonical Menuments of Wales and with support of Cadw
and Visit Wales, the book detatls the history of the World
Hertage Srte and features detalled walking routes and maps

(1]

This year we also completed a number of
developments at Pontcysyllte Aqueduct and
canal World Hentage Site to enable more
people to discover and access the site »

Canee:ng on the

Moantgomery Canal
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Trustees’ Report & Accounts

Our plans for the future

We believe waterways can be transformational - for people and communities. Over the past
year we have developed an ambitious and wide-ranging strategy for the future. We want our
canals to be vibrant places, full of life and the centre of the community; we want more people
to discover, use and get 1nvolved with their local canal or river. Our ten-year strategy sets out
what we want to achieve in six key areas over the next ten years.

Waterways
* To encourage and grow the number of people
boating, using and enjoying the waterways

« To manage our assets — everythmg from bridges
to aqueducts to culveris and locks — in the best
possible way

» To look after the heritage and wildlife on our
canals and rivers for people to enjoy — now and
m the future

» Towpaths that are safe and available for everyone

10 use for all the activatzes that people enjoy doing Prospenty
* Our waterways to drive and be a catalyst for
» To be a champion for restoration and grow the regeneration and developments that make a
number of waterways we care for difference to the local area

¢ Our waterways and the surrounding areas to be alive
with a broad range of businesses and enterprises

» To contribute to local economues and to provide
opportunities and livelihoods for local people

* Waterways and our museums to provide learning
and activities for all, especially for children and

young peaple

* To encourage community events, festivals and
celebrations on our waterways

Places
* Our waterside locations and our museums and
attractions to be popular nisitor destinations

* To provide havens for people to escape to — away
from the pressures of modern life

= Enhance wildhife habitats and the natural landscape

* Our waterways to be promoted as ‘green’ low
carbon cptions

* New developments around the waterways that are
in keeping with them and their wider environment.
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Resources

* The Trust to be a great place to work and
volunteer, to attract, retamn and grow capable
and passionate employees and volunteers

¢ To grow the number and range of funding
partners and donors who work wath us

* Grow our 1investment mcome and long term
capital value to earn the money needed to look
after our canals

¢ To continually look for better ways of working
and use new technology so we are as effective
and efficient as possible

* Look after our water and other vital natural
resources to support the sustainable use of the
waterways in the long term

Influence
* To be a well-kmown and respected charity, locally
and nationally

* To develop strong strategie parinerships and
be recogmised as a valued partner that gets
things done

* People to be our advocates and talk positively
about us, and the work we do

= To influence national and local fundng and pohoey
decisions to support waterways

« To promote the wider impact waterways can and
are having across England and Wales

Canal & River Trust Annual Report 2014/15
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Finance Review

Years ended 31st March

2015 2014 change
Surmmmary of Group Financial performance £m £m %
Total Incoming resources 180 5 162 2 110%
Net resources avallable for chartable activities 146 2 1312 11 4%
Total resources expended on charttable actrvibes (138 3) {125 3) 10 4%
Net incoming resources 79 59
Share of mcome from joint ventures 43 06
Realised gains on disposal of investments 385 14 2
Unrealised gains on revaluation of investments 394 28 4
Actuanal losses on the penstan fund {25 8) (132
Taxation charge 01 {0 1)
Net movement in funds 64 2 358
Total funds 6600 595 8 108%

The Trust achieved an excellent financial performance for the year Net resources
avallable for chantable actwvities were up on the previous year by 11% mainly due
1o increased income from the property investments and development agreements
in the London Docklands

Expenditure on chantable activities increased by £13m due mainly to an ncrease
of £5m on third party funded waterway regeneration and restoration and £7m on
waterway infrastructure mamntenance and repar

Joint venture income has benefited from completion of residential property
development schemes in various locations in England that have benefited from
the bucyant property market conditions

Disposals of property investments, with proceeds totaling £99 7m, have been
completed dunng the year at substantial surpluses over the book values These have
given nse to realised gans of £38 5m The retained investment portfolio has been
revalued at a surplus of £39 4m over the previous year's open market valuation

The deficit on the Waterways Pension Fund has increased by £25 8m due to

changes in the actuarial assumptions used for the accounting valuation under
the accounting standard FRS 17
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Creation and purpose of the Trust

The Canal & River Trust 1s a company imited by guarantee that was formed on
12 October 2011 and became registered as a charity on 4 Aprl 2012

The assets and undertaking of Bntish Waterways (*“BW") in England and Wales
were transferred to the Trust on 2 July 2012 by a Statutory Transfer Scheme under
the Public Bodies Act 2012 (the “Transfer”) The assets and habilities transferred
from BW have been categonised between the Protected Endowment Fund, as
determined by the Defra Grant Agreement, and the General Fund of the Waterways
Infrastructure Trust {*WIT") This Review prowvides further explanation of the terms
of the Protected Endowment and the funding relationship with Defra

The WIT includes all the waterway assets and structures that compnise the waterways,
towpaths and assocated structures These are held by the Trust as trustee in a
perpetual trust the objects of which are to hold, operate and manage the waterway
infrastructure property for public benefit and to use the income from the property
to fund the cost of the trust objects These waterway assets are categonsed in the
accounts as Heritage Assets, as defined under Financial Reporting Standard 30
Hentage Assets, and are excluded from the balance sheet on the basis that rehable
cost or value information for the assets cannot be obtained The waterways and the
associated structures represent a financial burden te the Trust and have an annual
mamtenance and reparr requirement that significantly exceeds the income ansing
from the waterway land, and also from the Protected Endowment Accordingly the
economic value of the waterways i1s estimated to be substantially negative

The financial strategy of the Trust is to provide a secure and increasing flow of
income to fund the maintenance, repair and enhancement of the waterways as

well as to maintain a strong and liquid balance sheet The net incoming resources
are applied to the chantable purpose after providing for the costs of administering
and managing the Trust's iIncome generating activities The Protected Endowment
Agreement and the Waterways Infrastructure Trust Deed prowide for all income
ansing from the endowment and the trust assets to be applied to the charitable
purpose of maintaining the waterways for public benefit The financial strategy for
the Trust 1s to maximise net income from all sources and to increase the contribution
to the Trust's activiies through volunteenng and local engagement
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‘£121m

earned from our
commercial activities

Grant Agreement with Defra

The future sustainable operations of the Trust rely in part on the long term funding
agreement with Defra The Grant Agreement was a condition of the Statutory
Transfer of the assets and undertaking from BW and enabled the Trust Board
members to form a postwe conclusion about the ability of the Trust to fund ds
operations at a satisfactory level for the foreseeable future

The Grant funding provided to the Trust in the penod from 1 April 2014 to 31
March 2015 was in total £39m The Grant Agreement provides that the investment
assets and habilities transferred to the Trust will be held in a Protected Endowment
1o provide a long term income stream to contnbute to the cost of mantaming and
operating the waterway infrastructure property The Grant Agreement 1s for 15
years from 2 July 2012 and prowides for a tranche of condtional income based on
pre-determined performance criteria It also specifies the terms of the Protected
Endowment, which i1s explamned below

One of the obligations of the Grant Agreement is to pubhgh annually the defined
Publication Data In addition, part of the grant funds recervable from Defra

(the conditional tranche of the Grant) 1s subject to compliance with the Relevant
Standards which are explamed in the table on page 47 The £39m grant received
duning the year included a £3m condtional payment following confirmation that the
Relevant Standards had been met for the year ended 31 March 2014

Protected Endowment and
Investment Strategy

The Protected Endowment 1s defined under the Grant Agreement and compnses
all the investment assets and habites of the Trust such as investment propertes,
investments in subsidiary companies, financial mvestments, cash avadable for
investment, protected operational bulldings, net of any habilities that are effectively
secured on, or due for payment from, the assets in the Protected Endowment as
transferred to the Trust under the Statutory Transfer Scheme on 2 July 2012

The Trustees have approved an investment strategy that specifies real estate
property investments in the UK as the main asset class but allows up 10 40% of the
portfolio to be invested in a more diverse range of asset classes such as equities,
absolute return funds, bonds and private equity The objective 1s to provide recurring
income whilst growing the value of the portfolio to ensure that, over the medium
term, income and capital can grow in real terms in nisk terms, whilst the Trust i1s
able to tolerate modest short term volatlity, the man objective of the investment
strategy I1s to avoid permanent loss of value in the portfalio

Total return from the investment property portfolio for the year ended 31 March
2015 was 21 8% (2014 15 3%) This compares favourably with the IPD UK all
commercial property index where total return was 17 1% for the same period
Approximately 7 4% of the CRT total return arose from income (net rents) and
the balance from capital value growth +6 6% and gains on disposal +7 9%

During the year CRT implemented «ts proposals to diversify part of the portfolio
away from property investments into other nvestment sectors The funds invested
dunng the year, totaling £80m, were placed using an outsourced investment office
arrangement under a services agreement with Partners Capital The valuation of

the non-property fund as at March 2015 stood al £86 7m The return earned by the
fund was equivalent to 13% on an annualsed basis The Trust has adopted a total
returns policy for the non-property investment fund whereby 5% of the total return
on the average capital balance can be applied as ncome to fund charitable actvities
provided that a retained capttal return of UK RPI+1% on the average capital balance
invested has been achieved After apphcation of £2 3m of the unappled total return
fund in the year the balance on the non-property investment fund at 31 March 2015
was £84 4dm
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Fundraising and the Donor Promise

The Trust has initiated a fundraising programme aimed at generating income for the
Trust’s chartable purpose This 1s at an early stage but a very encouraging start has
been made on indvidual giving and corporate sponsarship Currently the tolal cost
of the Trust’s fundraising programme exceeds the amounts ratsed and this situation
may continue until the income from the fundraising programme grows further To
mrigate the effect of these costs the Trust pledges that for voluntary income *we
will use your donation to conserve, restore and enhance our canals and rivers or to
educate people about them” This has the effect that the donated funds are placed
in a Restricted Fund and applied in full to the intended purpose of the donation

The funds raised dunng the year are shown :n note 16 to the accounts Of the total

funds raised for the year £1 9m has been credited to the restricted income fund and
£1 8m has been appled to projects dunng the year

Reserve Funds

Overall total Funds have increased by £64 2m for the year as shown in the table below

2015 2014 Movement
Summary of Group Fund Balances as at 31 March £Em £m £m
General Fund - undesignated 249 17 1 78
General Fund designated as Pension Accumulation Fund 68 41 27
Protected Endowment Restricted Fund
Subsidiary companies 212 22 190
Asset dowries 499 505 (0 )
Investment assets 5558 5206 352
Voluntary Income Restricted Fund 14 13 01
6600 585 8 64 2

The net assets acquired from BW by Statutory Transfer as at 2 July 2012 that are
within the Protected Endowment have been allocated to a restricted fund Other
assets and habilities that are not within the Protected Endowment have been credited
to the General Fund The property assets within the Waterways Infrastructure Trust
are valued at nil on the balance sheet as explaned in the accounting policies The
Voluntary Income Restncted Fund comprises the unspent balance on these funds

The restricted fund for subsidiary companies within the Protected Endowment relates
1o the post acquisttion reserves of those subsidiary compames that were transferred
to the Trust as at 2 July 2012

The Designated Fund comprises funds that have been transferred from the General
Fund for the purpose of accumulating an investment fund to make good any deficit
on the Waterways Pension Fund in 2031 when the Pension Funding Partnership
structure, descnbed below, 1s due to be terminated

3%
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Analysis of Boat Licence and
Moorings income

As at 31 March 2015 there were 32,773 (2014 32,440) boats with a licence

1ssued to use the Trust's waterways {excluding boat licences for one month or less}
This represents a small increase of 0 9% compared with the equivalent figure as at

31 March 2014 Boating and mooring statishcs for the years ended 31 March

Boat licences. 2013 2014
£m £m
Long term boat cence income £18 8m £17 9m
Number of boats with a licence at 31 March * 32,733 32,440
Number of boats with a 12 month licence at 31 March 32,179 32,018
Income per private long term licence {annualised) £596 £580
Moornngs
Income from mooring permits £52m £5 Om
Number of mooring berths avalable 3,585 3,637
Occupancy rate 90% 89%
Income yield per occupied berth (annuzlised) £1,611 £1,549
Income yield per available berth {annualised) £1,444 £1,379

* Excludes boat licences for 1 month or less

Joint Ventures

The main joint venture interests of the Group are ISIS Waterside Regeneration LP

{50%), H20 Urban {No 2) LLP {50%), and City Road Basin Limited {49%)

Each of

these operations 15 engaged in waterside property development The bank and other
institutional borrowings within these joint ventures are without recourse to the Trust
and ts subsidianes and as at 31 March 2015 comprised {the Trust Group share)

The Trust's share of bank borrowings in joint 2015 2014
ventures as at 31 March was £m £m
ISIS Waterside Regeneration
Homes and Communities Agency 23 41
Bank 48 41
71 B2
H20 Urban LLP ’
Bank 48 _
Total share of borrowings in joint ventures 119 82

There were no bank or other institutional borrowings in the other joint ventures at

31 March 2015

H2¢ Urban LLP had a very active year with profits ansing on six schemes in

particutar at Bow Wharf in East London where land was sold to a new Joint Venture

partnership to develop 34 residential units

The primary focus in ISIS has been the Brentford lock west residential development
in West London In phase one 46 units were completed and sold duning the year
generating a £3m profit share for the Trust Good progress was made on the second
phase at Islington Wharf, in Manchester on a townhouse development scheme with

41 out of 46 units sold generating a profit share of £0 6m for the Trust
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Liquidity and Borrowings

2015 2014
Cash flow summary - Years ended 31 March £m £m
Net incoming resources from operations 79 509
Non-cash tems in operating surplus 12 (386)
Movement in working capital and provisions (6 9) 40
Net interest recevable 12 40
Dividend from joint ventures 086 o3
Operating cash flow 16 106
Operational capital expenditure (net) {4.4) {35)
Purchase of investment properties (42 5) (222)
Disposal of investment properties 99.7 157
Repayment of loan note 31.5 -
Net investment in diversified funds {858) R
Net repayment from joint ventures 40 28
Payments into short term bank deposits 04) (57
Taxation 1) 01
Revalving credit facility arrangement fees 02 -
Net cash flow 34 (22
Cash balance as at 31 March 525 49 1
Cash balances and deposits at year end are as follows
2015 2014
Bank accounts — as at 31 March £m £m
General fund account 15.3 190
Cash held by subsidiarres 242 159
Protected endowment investment capital 121 131
Held in third party accounts for regeneration 09 i1
525 481

The Trust's comparatively low exposure to financial markets together with active
management of iquidity has ensured it 1s well placed to withstand any nisk in
financial markets

The Trust also has borrowings of £12 8m from Port of London Properties (“POLP")
This loan 1s at a floating rate of interest bemng 1% above the Bank of England base
rate The loan was unsecured as at 31 March 2015 but there 1s an outstanding
commitment to the lender to provide security to a value that 1s satisfactory to the
lender The POLP loan i1s repayable in January 2019 There 1s an interest rate cap in
place for a notional amount of £20m based on three month LIBOR against a capped
rate of 1 5% with a maturity date of September 2018

Liquidity nisk 1s defined as the risk that the Group would not be able to settle or mest
its obligations on time or at a reasonable pnce The Trust manages its hquichty nisk
on a group basis based on operational needs, investment transactions or maturity of
borrowings The liquidity position 1s monitored through rolling forecasts of expected
cash flows
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The credit nsk in cash deposits 18 managed through the treasury investment policy
which restricts counterparties to UK registered banks that have Standard & Poor's
long term ratings of at least A with mits for deposit duration and armount These
polcies are continually morutored and updated for the prevailling market conditions
The Group has no significant concentration of credit ngk from its customers as
exposure 1s spread over a large number of entiles and indmiduals

The Trust has interests in a number of property development joint ventures that
are stand-alone businesses and are independently funded with external bank debt
without recourse to the Trust In each of the joint ventures an assessment 1s made
whether the interest payments on borrowings should be hedged having regard to
the quantum of the debt, the period over which the borrowings are planned to be
outstanding and the senstmity of the project to changes in interest rates At 31
March 2015 Group share of total bank borrowings in joint ventures was £8 Om
{2014 £8 2m) All of these borrowings were at fixed margin but an uncapped
vanable reference rate of interest There was no interest rate hedgmng instruments
in place for any of these borrowings

Waterways Pension Fund

In July 2012 the Trust created a Pension Funding Partnership (“PFP") with the
Woaterways Pension Fund {(*WPF") through which an Asset Backed Contribution
(“ABC"} was madle to the WPF to reduce the valuation deficit on the pension fund
The PFP arrangement has a 19 year life from July 2012 and 1s expected to mature
n 2031 The assets in the PFP compnse two pnme London freehold ground rent
investments that have reliable long term income characteristics

The PFP compnises a imited partnership in which the WPF has a iimited partner’s
interest in the assets of the partnership Through this interest the WPF has the first
call on the assets of the partnership hrmuted to the lesser of £125m or the actual
deficit on the WPF as shown on the Scheme Actuary’s valuation as at 31 March
2031 The WPF's interest carmes a fixed prior share of the rental income of the
PFP amounting to £5m pa The remammng equity in the PFP accrues to the Trust
group of companies

The PFP 1s consolidated in full in the Group accounts as a controlled undertaking
and the WPF 1s accounted for under the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard
17 Retrement Benefits with the effect that the ABC 1s eliminated from the assets of
the WPF and accordingly the deficit on the WPF appears in the group consolidated
accounts as though the ABC had not been made

Separately from the PFP, the Trust has adopted a policy of setting aside an amount
each year fram tha General Fund into a Designated Fund for the purpose of
accumulating an investment fund that will be avallable to contribute assets to the
WPF when the PFP structure matures in 2031 The balance in this designated at
fund at 31 March 2015 s £6 8m (2014 £4 1m)
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2015 2014

Summary of changes tn pension fund deficit - Years ended 31 March em £m
Deficit as at 1 Apri (67.9) {59 4)
Current service cost (6 5 {7 1)
Discount unwinding on pension scheme habities (19.6) (19 2)
Actual return on pensicn scheme assets 51.7 51
Actuanal (losses) / gains from changes in assumptions and expenience (56.3) 21
Contrnbutions in cash from the employer = 10.7 106
Deficit as at 31 March (87.9) (67 9)
’ 2015 2014

Assets and habilities in pension scheme as at 31 March £m £m
Market value of assets 4089 3619
Present value of habilihes (496 8) (429 8)
Deficit as at 31 March @79 (67 9)
Funding % 82% B84%

Comparison with Business Plans

The income and expenditure presented in the Statement of Financial Activities
{SoFA) has been restated on the following page without the allocation of central
support costs In the SoFA these central accosts are allocated to the activibes
for generating funds and to the chardable activibes on a consistent and far basis
The management accounting basis used for business plans for the Trust however
are prepared and pubhshed without this allocation of central costs To enable a
companson between the Plans and the actual results an alternative presentation
1s set out below where the central costs are show as a separate line with “Costs
of generating funds™ and within “Resources expended on charntable activities”
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reported without cost (Without cost {(Without cost
Year ended 31 March 2015 - companson with business plan n SoFA allocation allocation) allocation}
£m £m £m £m

Incoming resources
Voluntary income - donations 16 16 14 25
Defra grant funding 390 390 390 500
Leisure boating and moorings 338 338 342 354
Income from mannas operated by BWML 71 71 72 73
Utilty incomea and water sales 261 261 242 259
Investment income 46.4 46 4 429 401
Share of Income from joint ventures i8.8 188 302 360
Incoming resources from generated funds 1728 1728 179 1 197 2
Waterway infrastructure income 61 61 49 51
Waterway regeneration and restoration 11.7 117 108 125
Museums and attractions 12 12 13 12
Incoming resources from charitable activities 190 190 188
Other incoming resources 75 75 06

(18 8}

Voluntary income 27 (18) (18) 27
Leisure boating and moorings (9 6) {7 6) ©2) (95
Marinas operated by BWML (G 3r)] 57 (6 3) (63)
Utiliies and water sales (24) {16) (13) (14)
Investment management (13 9) (11 2) {11 1) (10 4)
Central support service costs allocated to cost of generating funds - (6 4) (6 4) (6 6)

Cost of generating funds

Resources expended on charntable activites

Waterway infrastructure maintenance and reparrs {117 9) {107 7) (105 0) (113 0)
Waterway regeneration and restoration {150) (13 5) {(127) (15 5)
Museums and attractions 38 31 (30) 32
Grants to other organisations 02 02 - -
Chantable activities {136 9) (124 5) (1207 (1317
Governance costs §I)) {c8g) (0 8) ©7
Central support service costs allocated to charitable activities - (13 0) (13 0) (13 6)

{138 3) (138 3) {134 5) {146 0)

Total resources expended on charitable activibes and governance

teteurpup@ehcivlontthelsor ANEENENEY

.ﬂa@
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Transfer to pension accumulation designated reserve (20 {20) (2 0) {2 0)
Distribution to Pension Funding Partnership 50 (5 Q) (50 (5 0)
FRS17 pension fund accounting adjustments (0 8) {0 8) - -

Other transfers between funds 34 34 01 30
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Business Plan for year ended
31 March 2015

Total incorming resources improved from £166 9m to £180 5m (an increase of

£13 6m) due to better than planned income arising from the release of restrictive
covenants over property in London Docklands (£5 4m), improvements in investment
and ublity income (€5 4m) and increased waterway maintenance income and
regeneration income totalling £2 1m

Cost of generating funds were £1 8m below plan due partly to delay in starting some
projects, various cost savings

As a result of this improved income and costs savings net resources available for
charrtable activities was £15 4m better than onginally planned

Expenditure on chartable activities increased by £3 8m compared with the plan due
mainly to addihonal expenditure on waterway infrastructure mamnienance and repars
that were funded from the higher net income

The share of income from joint ventures was in line with the plan and reflects the
success of the residential property development actwvity within the joint venture entties

Business Plan for the year ending
31 March 2016

The Trustees have adopted a plan for the year ending 31 March 2018 which has
been published on the Trust's website The following commentary explains the
companison between the 2014/15 actual results and the plan for 2015/16

The 2015/16 plan reflects the expected £11m increase in the grant income from
Defra Voluntary income generation will continue to focus on individual and corporate
gving with a planned £0 8m increase in donations to a total of £2 5m for the
2015/16 year

Investment income is planned to decline by £6 3m from the exceptionally high level
of 2015 income, which included some one-off receipts Similarly “Other incoming
resources” shows the effect of the one-off receipts that have benefited the results
in 2014/15

Within the “Cost of generating funds" it is expected that leisure boating and mooring
costs will nse as vanous projects to improve the standard of towpath moorings are
implemented offset by reductions in investment property estate management costs

“Net resources available for charitable actmities” 1s planned to be £2 5m less than
2014/15 due 1o the factors explained above

Resources expended on chantable activiies are planned to increase by £7 2m
which includes an intention to increase expenditure on “Waterway infrastructure
marintenance and repairs” by £5 3m and expendiure on “Waterway regeneration
and restoration” by £2m over the 2014/15 levels

After allowing for the £2m increase in the expected contribution from joint venture
activity, and the other movements on funds, the net movement on the General Fund
for 2015/16 1s planned to be a break even position compared with a surplus of

£7 8m for the year ended 31 March 2015

45

66

We received

£39m

grant support
from Defra.., *?

Canal & River Trust Annual Report 2014/15




SIUNCo0V 2 110doy 599181,

S1/¥LOT Hoday [enuuy Isni| Jeay P [eue)

Publication Data - required under
the Defra Grant Agreement

Orne of the obligations of the Grant Agreement 1s to publish annually the defined
Publication Data which ts set out in the table below

The Network Stewardship Score 1s a combined measure of functionality of and the
public benefit delivered by the waterway network [t 1s calculated annually based on
a range of indicators All Principal Waterway Assets are measured and categonsed
according to condition A structure in condiion A 1s in a good state of reparr and one
in condition E i1s in a bad condition Embankments and culverts are included within
the definion of Principal Assets but towpaths are dealt with as a separate category
and are graded according to condriion grades from A to E where A 1s described as
very good and E is bad

The hentage asset measure n the table below covers both the waterway assets

categorised as Hertage Assets in the accounts policies as well as operational and
investment properties that have heritage quahties
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Publication Data

Measure

Descnption

Qutcome Result

National Stewardship Score

A combined measure of waterway funchonality
and public benefit as at 31 March 2015

118 (2014 114)

Safety

Number of reported incidents
involving customers relating to
infrastructure failure

The numbers of Injuries are for the year ended
31 March 2015

30 (2014 34) customer Incidents where
an infrastructure defect was a significant
contnbutory cause

Number of reported incidents
nvotving employees

The numbers of inunes for the year ended
31 March 20156

17 {2014 25) employee lost time injunes which
includes 8 HSE Riddor reportable “over 7 day”
nunes (2014 11)

96 (2014 145) total employee recorded injunies

Percentage of waterway assets in
Classes D and E*

Based on Principal Asset condition grades The
Relavant Standard is for the aggregate of assets
n classes D&E not to exceed 26% of the total

Aggregate percentage of pnncipal assets in
condition classes D&E was 14 1% as at 31
March 2015 (2014 14 7%)

Towpaths

Number of towpath visitors
(based on annual survey data}

Number of wisits and wisitors for the year ended
31 March 2015 based on a telsphone survey of
members of the public, expressed in milions

Total wisits 402m (2014 350m)

Average wisitors duning a two week period
45m (2014 3 5m)

Total wisitors 19 5m {2014 13 Om)

Number and duration of
unplanned closures

Defined as unplanned closures that arg caused
by asset or infrastructure failure for the year
ended 31 March 2015

Number of closures 8 (2014 24)
Number of closure days 663 (2014 769)

* Closure at Bridge 87 on the Grand Union in
respact of the fadure of a bndge arch {121 days)

* Vaid in towpath on Calder & Hebble (137 days)
* Brnidge 50 A faulure on Caldon Canal (117 days)

Percentage of towpaths n conditions
AtoC*

The Relevant Standard 1s no less than 60%
aggregate in conditions Ato C

Aggregate percentage of towpaths in condition
classes A, B and C was 74 5% as at 31 March
2015 (2014 74 7%)

Flood management*

Percentage of principal culverts and
embankments in Class D and Class E

The Relevant Standard s for the aggregate of
flood management assets in classes D&E not to
exceed 4% of the total flood management assets

Aggregate percentage of flood management
assets in condition classes D&E was 1 41%
as at 31 March 2015 (2014 1 57%)

Sites of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSls)

Percentage area of $SSSls under
Trust management in favourable or
unfavourable recovenng condition

The data 1s available only for sites in England
and s obtained from Natural England It covera
a total of 718 hectaras of SSSI sites under the
Trust's management

Favourable 38 4% {2014 54 4%)

This reduction 1s mainly duse to the reassessment
of Belvide Reservorr from Favourable to
Unfavourable declining

Unfavourable recovering 23 6% (2014 19 9%)

Heritage

Percentage of Heritage Assets
assessed on completion of work

as good or adequate with double
weighting given to good assessments

This measure includes work on all assets that
have heritage qualities and 1s not hmited to
waterway infrastructure assets only

98 6% (2014 95 8%)

Volunteer participation

Number of volunteer days
contnbuted to the Trust

Number of volunteer days for the year ended
31 March 2015

58,774 days (2014 51,338 days)

Trust owned housing
forecast figures

Based on the property development activity on
the Trust's sites (iIncluding jont ventures) — actual
for the year ended 31 March 2015 and forecast
for the year ending 31 March 2016

(These figures also include development sites
previously disposed of by the Trust These are
not formally monitored by the Trust and are
reported on the basts agreed previously with
the Homes and Communites Agency )

2015 133 residential units complated
(500 forecast)

2016 Over 470 units to be under construction
either currently or within the next 6 months
(over 860 anticipated within the whole of 2016)
Approxmately 480 units are forecast to be
completed in the year

The Publicatron Data tems denoted with an * compnise the Relevant Standards for the purpose of the conditional element of the Defra Grant
The information in the lable above demonstrates that the Relevant Standards have been met for the penod to 31 March 2015 and accordingly
the Trust will apply for payment of the conditional portion of the Defra Grant funding for the year ending 31 March 2016 which compnses £10m
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“£137m

spent on our,,

charitable activities

GOVERNANCE

CREATING THE CANAL & RIVER TRUST

The Canal & Rver Trust (the "Trust”) i1s the charity set up in 2012 to care for England
and Wales' 200-year-old waterways, holding them in trust for the nation forever

The Trust 1s among the UK's biggest charties, with responsibility for 2,000 miles of
navigable canals and rivers, together with bridges, tunnels, aqueducts, docks and
reservorrs, along with museums and archive collections The charitable activities of
the Trust were launched in July 2012 when it took over the activities in England and
Wales from Bntish Waterways and The Waterways Trust

The statutory instrument 'The Briish Waterways Board (Transfer of Functions) Order
2012' came into force on 2 July 2012 and the Trust acquired the assets, labilities
and aperatons of tha British Waterways Board in England & Wales on that date

On 28 July 2012 the Trust acquired The Waterways Trust, an independent chanty
responsible for three waterway museums including a collection of historic boats,
waterways artefacts and historic records

CHARITABLE PURPOSE

At the core of any chanty are its charitable objects or purposes They are the whole
reason for the existence of a chanty and it is therr effectve pursuit and prometion that
15 the focus of the system of governance The Trust's objects are set out in the Articles
of Association and can be accessed via our websde (www canalnvertrust org uk)

The Trust undertakes a wide range of activities, all of which aim to further its
chartable purposes for the public benefit In rewiewing our aims and objectives and
setting our priorities each year, we have regard to the Chanty Commissien's general
guidance on pubhc benefit Further details on our strategy for the future, sething out
what we want to achieve over the next ten years can be found on page 34

A review of the main activities, achievements and benefits of the period ended 31
March 2015 can be found on pages 4 to 32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Trustees has committed itself to the Seven Principles of Public Life and
takes cogrisance of Good Governance ~ & Code for the Voluntary and Community
Sector The Trust has been comphant with best practice on corporate govermance
standards throughout the year The following statements explain how the principles
of the Good Governance Code have been applied

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF THE TRUST

The Canal & River Trust Is a charity registered with the Charity Commusston in
England and Wales, No 1146792 M 1s a company imited by guarantee, No
7807276, and does not have a share capital It has the consent of the Registrar of
Companies to be exempt from the requirement to use the word “Limited” in its name

The Trust’s governing documents are its Memorandum and Articles of Association
These documents can be accessed via our website {www canalnvertrust org uk)

The Trust has two principal wholly owned trading and investment subsidianies,
British Waterways Mannas Limited (BWML) and Canal & River Trading CIC BWML
operates 19 marinas across England & Wales offermg customers a comprehensive
range of boat services Canal & River Trading CIC 1s a community interest company
that carnes out trading and investment activities The main activities are in property
development, investing in joint ventures and operating attractions Profits ansing in
the subsidiaries are donated to the Trust A summary of all the Trust's subsidiaries
and results appears i note 11 in these accounts
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Three groups make up the governance of the Canal & River Trust

Counecil

7 Advice
Trustees support &
influence

@ Management Executive
@ Governance

Waterway Waterway
Management Partnership

Museum & Museum &
Attractions Attractions
Management : Partnership

All Wales

Head of Wales Partnership

1 Council

Council members are the ‘'members’ of the Trust for company law purposes The
Councll helps to shape policy and 1s there to hold trustees to account Whilst the
Council does not run the Trust, it has a key role in appointing trustees and may,
necessary, dismiss them lts membership of up to 36 reflects the wide appeal of the
waterways and includes a mix of efected and nominated individuals together with the
thirteen Partnership chars Members are listed on page 88

The Council meets twice a year At the September 2014 meeting the Counc
reviewed its achievements since the first meeting in March 2012 At that meeting

the Council agreed detalled revisions to the Trust Rules which included increased
elected representation and a nominated member from the Inland Waterways
Association, effective from 2016 Topics discussed included Engagement with young
people and diversity, the Trust's approach to Canal Restoration, How the Trust can
engage with the well-being agenda, chmate change and the canal network resilience

In March 2015, the Council endorsed a recommendation for a new Bwrdd Glandvr
Cymru to be chared by a Trustee to strengthen the main Beard of Trustees' links
with Wales This would replace the All Wales Partnership Topics discussed included
the Trust's strategy on Property & Investment, Corporate Fundrassing,

Arts on the Waterways, and Education

All meetings include an update briefing from the chief executive followed by
questions and answers

No Trustee may serve a single term of longer than three years A third will be
reguired to retire each year No Trustee may serve more than two terms continuously,
except for the char who may serve three terms The membership of the Board of
Trustees 1s intended to ensure a balance of skifls and expenence relevant to the
vanous sectors of the Trust and candidates for appointment as new trustees are
proposed to the Council by the Appointments Committee {a jont committee of

equal numbers of trustees and Council members) after public advertisement and

a process of competitive selection
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At the Annual General Meeting of the Trust (a meeting of Council} in September
2014, the following trustees were reappointed following their retirement by rotation

Lynine Berry
Jane Cotton
John Dodwell

In addition, Allan Leighton and Ben Gordon, on the recommendation of the
Appointments Committee were appointed as trustees

John Bridgeman retired as a Trustee on 24 September 2014

Joint Council and Trustees Appointments Commuttee

The remit of the Appointments Committee, defined by Article 27 of the Trusts
Articles of Association, includes

= management of the recrutment of trustees and recommendation to the Council
for appointments

*  appointment of the Partnership chairs who become members of Council
ex officio

* identification of co-optees to balance the skills and expenence represented on
the Council

peniodic review of the Trust Rules in respect of the constduencies represented
on the Council and their appointment by nomination or election .

Duning the year the Committee re-appointed charrs of the Waterway Partnerships as
follows Walter Menzies (Manchester & Penrine), Peter Mathews (West Midlands),
Charlotte Atkins (Central Shires), Danny Brennan {East Midiands), Brian Fender
{London), Mark Penny (Narth East} and John Best (South East), each for a further

3 year term Mark Lang (All Wales) and Laurence Newman {Museums & Attractions)
were appointed for shorter terms pending reviews of these Partnerships

Three new chairs were appointed Brenda Harvey (North Wales & Borders), David
Hagg (South Wales & Severn) and Bob Pointing {North West)

The Joint Appontments Committee reports on its work to the Council at therr
regular meetings

The following served on the Appointments Committee during the period
Trustees

Lynne Berry {Chair)

Tom Frankiin {to Dec 2014)

Jane Cotton (from Jan 2015)

Tony Hales

Council Members

Clive Henderson

Mark Penny
Alison Ward
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2. Board of Trustees - operation and membership

The 11 trustees of the Canal & River Trust are legally responsible for ensuring that
the Trust works towards ts Chantable Objectives Trustees are the unpaid board
directors (under company law) of the Trust, taking collective decisions on policy and
overarching strategy and providing oversight of the chief executive and executive
dwrectors The Trust's Board of Trustees 1s chaired by Tony Hales CBE Further
details of the relationships between the Board of Trustees, the Council, Partnerships,
Management and Committees can be found on page 49 of this report

The Trustees meet regularly (at least six times durning the year with additional
meetings as required) and brings an independent judgement to its oversight of
the direction, strategy and objectives of the Trust Reporting to the Trustees are
the chief executive and executive directors who have direct responsibility for
operations and management They also are responsible for the development of
operating strategy and policies, subject to approval by the Trustees Biographical
details of the Trustees can be found on page 98

All the trustees are independent from management Any business association

or other relationship which could interfere with the exercise of therr independent
Judgement or any other potential conflict 1s required to be declared Any declaration
ts noted 1n the minutes and, in appropriate cases, the trustee will withdraw from

the meeting during consideration of the business to which the declaration relates

The chairman has ensured that the trustees have been provided wath appropnate and
timely information and that therr enguines have been properly met Board papers are
sent out a week in advance of the relevant meeting to allow the members fully to prepare
for meetings, and minutes of committee meetings are circulated to all members The
trustees are kept informed of developments within the Trust through regular presentation
by management The chief executive and executive directors are normally present during
Trustee meetings though the charrman held meetings, or parts of meetings, of the

Board of Trustees without the chief executive and executive directors present Trustee
meetings are held at different locations around the Trust network and are preceded by
visits and meetings with Trust employees, volunteers and local stakeholders

The trustees have a schedule of matters specifically reserved to them for decision
and have also defined those delegated to Board of Trustee committees and the

chief executive and executive directors Al trustees have access to the adwvice and
services of the secretary to the trustees, and may take independent professional
advice at the Trust's expense after notifying the charman The secretary ensures that
new trustees recewve appropnate induction on appomntment

Where necessary, the Trust provides the necessary resources for professional
development and updating the knowledge and capabilities of the trustees, chief
executive and executive directors The secretary may only be removed with the
approval of the trustees

The trustees have a prescribed methodology for determining appropnate levels of
governance and control for subsidianes, joint ventures and associated undertakings
of the Trust The methodology provides a nisk profile that 1s used as a guide to the
appointment of directors and the appropriate level of management reporting

Conduct and performance evaluation

The trustees are committed to achieving high standards of conduct The Seven
Principles of Public Life recommended by the Commidtee on Standards in Public Life
have been applied to dself and iis people and these are complemented by a code of
conduct and ethics statement

The charman undertakes appraisals of Indwidual trustee performance and the vice

charrman appraises the charman The Board meets without the chairman present
at least once a year o consider the appraisal of his performance
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The last three
years have given
me immense
satisfaction, seeing
the Canal & River
Trust grow, thrive
and attract ever
increasing numbers
of volunteers,
supporters

and partners ”

— Tony Hales,
Chairman
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total reserve funds
increased by £64m

©£660m"~

Audit and Risk Commuttee

The Audt Committee was re-named the Audit and Risk Committee from 15 October
2014 to more accurately reflect the work that the committee was undertaking

The following trustees served on the Audit and Risk Committee during the pericd

Lynne Berry

John Bridgeman (to 9/7/14)
John Dodwell

Frances Done (Chair)

Tom Frankhn {from 9/7/14)
Steve Shine

The Trust's Audit and Risk Committee comprises five trustees The trustees are
satisfied that at least one member of the Audit and Risk Committee has recent and
relevant financial expenence The Committee has wntten terms of reference, and
meets at least three times a year to review the internal audtt plan, progress aganst
that plan, and summary findings of the internal and external auditors In addition to
reviewing the financial results and accounting policies, the Commitiee monitors the
effectiveness of nsk management and internal control systems for the trustees

By mvitation the charman attends the meetings, together with the chief executive,
the finance director, and the head of audit and, when appropniate, executive directors
and the external auditors

The Committee also meets both the external auditors and the head of audit privately
without the chief executive and executive directors present

The Audit and Risk Committee oversees the nature and amount of non-audit

work undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP each year to ensure that the external
auditors' independence 13 safeguarded and ensures compliance with the EU audit
reform which restricts the non-audit work permitted by external auditors All non-
audit services above £20,000 are required to be approved by the Audit and Risk
Committee Details of the external auditors’ fees are given in note 3 to the accounts

The Audit and Risk Committee i1s responsible for making recommendations to the
Board of Trustees regarding the appointment of the external auditor The Committee
undertook a competitive tender process in July 2014 and Grant Thornton UK LLP
were re-appointed as external auditors This was ratified at the AGM held on 24
September 2014 o

Dunng the year the Audit and Risk Committee reviewed significant areas of nsk
management and internal control including the effectiveness of internal and external
audit, governance in the Trust, the Trustees' Report and Accounts for 2014-15,
busmess continurty, IT governance, mobile working, contract management, the
Grant Agreement with Defra, and the way in which managers check complance
with agreed standards and processes

L
Elsewhere in the Trustees' Report and Accounts, there 1s an explanation of the
Trust's approach to risk management and the responsibilities of the Trustees

Investment Commttee

The following trustees served on the Investment Committee during the period

Manish Chande {Chair) Voluntary members
John Dodwell

Tony Hales John Bywater
Allan Leighton (from 26/1/15) Keith Tilson

Simon Thurley
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The tnvestment Committee compnses five trustees and two external voluntary
members who are co-opted to the Commiitee in an advisory capacity by agreement
of the trustees Its man task 15 to mantain oversight of the investrment strategy of
the Trust including property and non-property matters The Committee monttors
the performance of the overall investment portfolio against external benchmarks,
reviews policies and strategies and may obtamn reports from independent third
parties where it considers it appropnate The Committee has delegated authority
from the Board of Trustees to approve investment transactions within defined hrmits
but the authonsation of the largest investment transactions remains with the Board
of Trustees The Committee also keeps under review at each meeting progress on
the major joint venture interests

Dunng the year, the Investment Committee oversaw the first year of implementation

of the new Investment Strategy for the Trust involving a diversification of the Trust's
investment portfolio away from pure property mvestment to provide some measure

of nsk protection Pursuant to this strategy, the selected external investment

manager, Partners Capital, has invested £80m on behalf of the Trust in non-property ¢

¢
investments towards the overall objective of around 20% diversification away from £ 6 1 6 3
property in a 3 to 5 year ttme honzon ] m

invested in property and

The Committee also approved several significant property investments dunng the diversified mcome funds 9

year, pursuant to the Trust's continuing strategy to invest in better quality property
assets and divest iself of smaller more management-intensive assets

Remuneration Committee
The following trustees served on the Remuneration Commuittee during the perod

Jane Gotton (Chair)
Tony Hales

Torn Franklin

Steve Shine

The Remuneration Committee, compnsing four trustees, has as its main task
consideration annually of the performance of the chief executive and executive
directors, and determination of their remuneration levels

In determiming appropriate remuneration packages, the Remuneration Committee takes
account of the skills and expenence required for each of the roles and the remuneration
n the sectors from which surtable candidates for such posts would be found It reviews
the appropnate levels of remuneration for the chief executive and the executive directors
in the context of the Trust's operations and performance, and giving consideration to the
need for the nght skills and expenence across the leadership team

The Committee have taken independent advice as necessary to inform those
judgements They also take account of affordabiltty for the Trust, and the fact that
the Trust operates In the third sector The Committee continues to be satsfied that
the levels of executive director pay are appropnate to the responsibihties of the
posts concerned

Durning the year a new finance director was appointed, to take up the post during
2015/16, at a salary {(and total remuneration) lower than that of the outgoing finance
director The marketing & fundraising director 1s also retinng in summer 2015 and

a replacement 1s being sought

Information on chief executive, executive director and senior management
remuneration Is given i note 5 to the Accounts which adopts the format common

to the charitable sector and which follows the requirements of the Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) for Accounting and Reporting by Chanties The
only bonus payment awarded by the Remuneration Committee m 2014/15 was to
the property director, in line with the contractual link of his remuneration to the Trust's
performance against the wider property market
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we now have
more than

11,000

Friends, people who
generously support
us with their
monthly donation

The chief executive and the head of HR attend the Remuneration Commitiee
meetings by invitation to present recommendations and provide support to the
Commuttee, they also update the Remuneration Committee on matters regarding
senior level recrutment, leadership development, succession planning and reward
but have no input to decisions affecting therr own remuneration

We wish to pay tnbute to the chief executive and the executive team for their
achievements in 2014/15, a year in which they have continued to drive the ongoing
development of the Trust, with energy, commitment and strong leadership

Fundraising Committee

Prior to July 2014 an informal sub-group of trustees met intermittently to discuss
fundraising ssues, with relevant directors and senior employees, incfuding Ruth
Ruderham, head of fundraising in attendance As the scale and significance of the Trust's
fundraising has grown, #t was decided in July 2014 that a more formal sub-committee
with delegated authonty from the Board would be desirable The new Fundraising
Commitiee was approved and met for the first time on 18 September 2014

The following trustees served on the Fundraising Commidtee during the peniod

Jane Cotton (Chair)
Lynne Berry

John Dodwell

Tony Hales

The Committee, compnsing four trustees, provides assurance and recommendations
to the Trust on the effectiveness and approprateness of its fundraising programme
and policies, encompassing both voluntary and statutory fundraising

The Committee 13 responsible for identifying any matters in respect of which
considers that action or improvement is needed, make recommendations as to the
steps to be taken and report its work, conclusions and any recommendations to the
Trust In particular, it shall

Keep under review all fundraising policies ensuring that they remain fit for purpose
as the charity evolves

Proactively identify the need for new policies when i1ssues anse that demand a
consistent position

Review the relevance and support the implementation of the Ethical Pohicy

Keep under review our position with regard to regulatory bodies such as the
Professional Fundraising Regulatory Authority and the Fundraising Standards
Board, advising the Executive in these and other areas that affect the public
perception of both us and the charitable sector as a whole

Nominations Committee
The following Trustees served on the Nominations Committee during the period

Lynne Berry (Chair)

Jane Cotlon (from 9/7/14)
Tom Frankhn {from 9/7/14}
Tony Hales

Simon Thurley (from 9/7/14)

The trustees have a Nominations Committee comprising three trustees It provides
support and adwvice to the Trust's Appointments Committee on the selection of
candidates for appontment to the Board of Trustees {reviewing the Board's mix

of skills, experiences and charactenistics from time to ttme) It also considers
appointment of trustees to Board committees and succession planning
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3. Partnerships

The thirteen Partnerships form the third component in the governance of the Trust
Eleven are aligned to the operational waterway management units The Museums

& Attractions Partnership onginally formed to support our museums and visitor
attractions concluded its work in December 2014 In March 2015 it was agreed that
the All Wales Partnership would be replaced by a new Bwrdd Glandwr Cymru to be
chaired by a Trustee to strengthen the main Board of Trustees' links with Wales

Each Partnership has on average ten members and includes the relevant waterway
manager or senior manager In the case of All Wales and the Museums & Attractions
The partnership charrs are appointed by the Joint Appeintments Committee
Partnership members are appointed by the char of each Partnership, subject to
ratification by trustees

These Parinerships bring together a range of people with relevant skills, knowledge
and expertise to support the Trust They include boaters and canoeists, walkers,
cychsts, anglers, those with experence of business, local authorties, national
government, communities, young people, health and well-being, diversity, volunteenng,
fundraising, conservation and management of the environment and hertage

During the year each Parinership has completed the development of their Vision,
priorties and Action Plans for their Partnership The Plans are avallable on the
website Their visions and prniorities have been incorporated in the Trust's Vision,
strategic goals and business plan

At a local level each Partnership 1s playing a key role in reaching out to communities,
businesses, local politicians including MPs and the academic sector, forging new
relationships and encouraging financial and prachcal support for the Trust including
volunteering and waterway adopthons, bringing new people to the waterways from all
age groups and backgrounds

The char and deputy chair carry out annual reviews with each partnership chair
and provide feedback on therr work We wish to pay tnibute to the leadership of the
partnership chairs and the work of all members who are giving generously of their
time, developing their role with energy and enthusiasm, and widening the base of
support and engagement in each of their areas Members of the Partnerships are
listed on pages 99 to 100

The Waterways Ombudsman Scheme

An independent Waterways Ombudsman i1s available to consider complaints
against the Trust (and its subsidianes} that are not resolved through its own internal
complamnts procedure It s a non-statutory scheme funded by the Trust The terms
of the scheme under which the Ombudsman operates are available from the
Woaterways Cmbudsman'’s website (www waterways-ombudsman org)

The current Ombudsman, Andrew Walker, was appointed in November 2012 by the
previous Waterways Ombudsman Commuttee, following an advertisement and open
competition for the post Andrew previously spent four years as the Office of the
Telecommunicaticns Ombudsman, a role he left in June 2012

The current Waterways Ombudsman Committee comprises five members The
current members were apponted at the end of 2014 when the Committee was
re-established Three of the members are entirely mdependent, including the newly
elected chair Steve Harriot, appointed as chair n Feb 2015 A trustee (currently Tom
Frankhn} and an employee of the Trust (Jackie Lews, general counsel) are the other
two members of the Committee

More information on the work of the Ombudsman can be found on the Waterways
Ombudsman’s website
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“19.5m

people visited our
canals and rivers
during the year »”

Risk management

The trustees acknowledge their responsibility for detining the Trust's risk appetite
and tolerance and maintaining a sound nisk management systerm During the year

all major nsks were managed with no significant adverse impact duning the year
However, given the broader aims of the newly agreed 10 year Trust strategy, the
need for enhanced documentation and reporting improvements for the corporate nsk
register have been dentified Actions to improve the way in which ngk management
1s assessed, documented and reported are currently being implemented

The system of nsk management and internat controt 1z designed to mimmise rather *
than eliminate the nsk of fallure to achieve the Trust’s objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The key nsks to the Trust failling to achieve its strategic ams are

Non-financial risks

Operational nsk
The nsk of loss ansing from inadequate or failed internal processes, from personnel
and systems or from external events including changes in the regulatory environment

The main gperaticnal risks arnse from
+  The maintenance and operation of the waterway infrastructure
*  Climate change affecting the resilience of the waterway infrastructure

*  Safety of customers, contractors, employees and volunteers on the waterways
and the general public who can freely access, or who live alongside, our network

+  Maintainng a balance between conflicting stakeholder expectatons in particular
the various users of the towpath

+  Pressure on the water-space and moarings from very significant growth m boats
used as places to live in popular areas with igh housing costs and fmited avatlabity

«  Changes to legislation and regulation creating nsks to our resources and
operational requirements Examples of such change are the potential mpact
of long term abstraction licence reform and prospective requirements that may
emerge from the Water Framework Directive

*  Change to the orgamisation and/or personnel at the Trust causing loss of
knowledge, expertise, ar falure to adopt new pracesses

Strategic risk
Ineffective, inefficient or inadequate processes for the development and implementation
of the Trust's long term strategy

Financial risk

Market nsk

The nisk of loss resulting from fluctuations i ncome atinbutable 10 wider market
factors, affecting the sustainable generation of funds for the Trust

Credrt nisk ’

The nisk that a2 counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due The key
areas where the Trust 1s exposed to credit nisk are in refation 1o the rental due on our
property and the trade debts arising from boating and utility sales

Liguidity nisk

The nisk that mcome 1s insufficient to fund the appropnate maintenance regime of our
waterway assets (and related infrastructure) on a timely basis
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How we manage our risks

Our core expertise 1s 1n understanding and managing these nsks so that we can
fulfil our obligations to those who use our waterways by ensuring an adequate return
on our investments and other assets to provide the funds needed for the future
matntenance of our waterway infrastructure

We manage nsk through our choice of business strategy, underpinned by our
orgarisational culture and values Risk management 1s embedded across the Trust
through our nsk management framework, comprising our risk appetite, our nsk
governance, our tnternal control environment and nsk processes including traiming
and development of all relevant staff

Risk governance

Includes nsk policies, business standards and guidance, nsk oversight of committees
and clear roles and responsibilities

The Audd and Risk Committee from time to time considers and makes
recommendations to the Board on the effectiveness of the Trust's nsk management
framework by an informed assessment of the nsks to the Trust's objectives by
reference to a clear definion of the types and levels of nsk considered acceptable
and of complance with the appropriate contrels, standards and processes and
regulatory requirements The charr of the Audit and Risk Committee reports the
1ssues discussed and conclusions reached to the following Board of Trustees
meeting The Beard receves and notes the minutes of all Audit and Risk Committee
meetings and also consider any significant nsk management and'internal control
1ssues as well as specific reports on key risks, including the consequences of
asset failure

internal control environment

There is a clear organisation structure with delegated responsibifities and authorties
coupled with standards and processes for each functional area During the year

the Trust undertook a restructure to create a new Operations & Asset Management
directorate including the waterways and central technical teams to enable the Trust
to deliver better customer service, greater public and local community benefits, to
operate more efficiently with national asset management and delivery and, hence,
ensure the long term health of the waterways in our care

The Trust 1s committed to achieving high standards from its people A code of
conduct and ethics statement, which includes a whistleblowing procedure, 18
supported by high safety, customer care and recruitment standards During the year,
a new process for staff apprarsal and development, “Performance Excellence” was
implemented to further enhance the capabilties of our managers in getting the best
from their people

Risk Processes

The processes we use to identify, measure, manage, monitor and repori risks

Line management in the business 1s accountable for nsk management, which
together with the risk and internal audit function form our ‘three lines of defence’
of nsk management {1 e operational controls, nsk management and internal audt)
Having identified and assessed the nisks of our business, depending on our nisk
appetite, we ether accept these rnisks or take action to reduce or miigate them

Risks are identfied 0 each of the directorates’ Business Plan submissions and
are reviewed by the chief executive and his executive team This 1s supplemented
by on-going nsk assessments in each directorate jointly by management and
internal audit
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Risk mitigation

We manage our actual nsk profile against our understanding of the nsks of our
numerous assets and actvites

We use a range of nsk management and mitigation strategies The most important of
these are

+ active water management to ensure appropriate levels of water are avalable to
our waterway network so that the network 1s available for public use and any
nisk of flood 18 minimised

*  waterway asset condition nsk management through regular inspection,
assessment and prioriisation of remedial action of assets with high
consequence of fallure balanced with essential maintenance work arnising from
the infrastructure Assessments in accordance with the Trust's environment and
hertage codes of practice are applied to all works undertaken for the purpose
of ensuring that the Trust continues to meet its public environmental and
heritage obhgations .

= setting parameters for investment asset allocation, maturity, iquichty,
counterparty and other concentration nsks to manage market nsk

- ongoing apphcation of safety processes including training, work procedures,
signage and communication, regular inspection and maintenance of assets and
the development of relevant competencies

*  The Trust manages these nsks though applying codes of best practice to ensure
consistent and safe conduct, at an individual level, with regular perfermance
appraisals and personal development plans reflecting the continued priorites
(around risk and safety) of the Trust

Information and communication

The chief executive and executive directors submit a rolhing three year Operating
Plan, detailed annual budgets and key performance indicators on its strategic
priorities to the trustees for approval The Plan describes the implementation of the
Trust's long term strategic wision and 1s supported by individual Plans for activities
and investments that apply consistent economic and financial assumptions Monthly
operational reports and financial summaries together with regular forecasts are
produced for each actvity and reviewed by the Executive Progress aganst the key
performance indicators (KPls) is supphed on a bi-monthly basis for in year KPls
and annual basts for annual KPls to the Board for review Detailed reports and
projections are presented to the trustees at Board meetings

Trustees’ responsibiiihies in respect of the group accounts

The trustees (who are also directors of Canal & River Frust for the purposes of
company law) are responsible for prepanng the Trustees’ Annual Report (including
Strategic Report) and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial
year Under that law the trustees have elected to prepare the financial statements

n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) Under company law
the trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the chartable company and
the group and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the
ingcome and expenditure, of the chantable group for that period In preparning these
financial statements, the trustees are required to
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+  select sutable accounting pohcies and then apply them consistently,
+  observe the methods and principles in the Chanties SORP,
+  make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject
to any materal departures disclosed and explamed in the financial statements, and

+  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s
inappropnate to presume that the charttable group will continue in business

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the chartable company's transactions and disclose
with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the chartable
company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other wregularties

The trustees confirm that

«  so far as each trustee 1s aware, there 1s no refevant audit information of which
the chantable company's auditor 1s unaware, and

+  the trustees have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as trustees
in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the charrtable company's auditor 1s aware of that information

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the chartable company's website Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Going concern

The Trust has a broad range of secure income streams that provide a reliable
source of income to fund the Trust’s charitable activities This income 1s
supplemented by grant income from Defra under a Grant Agreement dated 28
June 2012, which s for a fixed term of 15 years A portion of the Defra grant
income 1s subject to performance condrions

Having reviewed the operational financial projections, and associated cash flow
forecasts, the trustees have concluded that the Trust has sufficient resources to
continue funding the charitable activities at the current leve! of operation for the
foreseeable future

This report (including the Strategic Report) was approved by the Board of Trustees
on 18 June 2015 and signed on therr behalf by

“Tomny beer-

T Hales
Chairman
30 June 2015
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Independent auditor's report to the
members of Canal & River Trust

We have audited the financial statements of Canal & River Trust for the year ended 31 March 2015 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial actvittes, the consclidated income and expenditure account, the group and parent
chantable company balance sheets, the consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s apphicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the chanitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we nught state to the charitable company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the chantable company and its members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditor

As explained more fully in the Trustees' Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 58 and 59, the trustees {who are also
the directors of the chantable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view Our responsibility s to audit and express an opinion

on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Prachces Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descriphon of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukpnrvate

Optnion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

+  gwe a true and farr view of the state of the group's and parent chartable company's affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of the
group's Incoming resources and applicahon of resources, including the group's income and expenditure for the year then ended,

+  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

«  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

Optnion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Trustees' Annual Report (including the Strategic Report) for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared i1s consistent with the financtal statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If,
in our opNion

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent chartable company, or returns adequate for cur audit
have not been recewved from branches not visited by us, or
the parent chantable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records or returns, or

+  certan disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

CVO\V\\f TS W o Ow Ly

Carol Rudge e v
Senor Statutory Audrtor Crreaavy TNV v

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutery Auditor, Chartered Accountants, London
30 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Funds 201415

Subsidianes 2013/14
Note £m Em £m £m £m £m
Incoming resources
Voluntary income
Donahons o1 - . 15 16 12
Defra grant funding 390 - - 390 300
Latsure boating 348 83 40 9 390
Utiies 281 - . 261 247
Investrnent ncome 314 134 18 46 4 419
Share of Income from jont ventures " 188 18.8 87
Incoming resources from generated funds 2 1312 385 16 18 172.8 154 5
Waterway infrastructure income B1 - 61 72
Waterway regeneration and restoration 113 04 117 70
Museums and attractions 12 12 11
Incoming resources from charitable activities 188 04 190 1583
Other incoming resources 2 75 - 75 15
Less Share of income from jont vertures 11 {18 8) - - 188 87)

o T T

R

Less Cost of generating funds

Voluntary income 27 - - @n (22
Lessure boating (100) (53} - - (153 (152)
Utlties (24) - 24) (24)
Investment management @7) (4 9} 03) (139 (11 6)
Cost of generating funds 3 (238 (102 ©3) - (343 (314

Resources expended on charitable activibhes

Woataerway infrastructure maintenance and repairs {116 5) - {14) 1179 (1108
Waterway regeneration and restoration {14 9) - o1 (150) @7
Museums and attractions 37) - {01} {38) 34
Grants to other orgarsations - 02 {02

Chantable actrwbes 3 (1351) - B (18) (1369 {1238
Governance costs 3 (14) - - - (14 (14)
Total resources axpended on chantable actvihes and governance (136 5) - - (18) {1383 (1253)

Share of nat income from Joint Ventures 1 43 43 06
Total return on diversified investment funds appked 13 (13)

Transfers between funds 16 15 (159 44 -

Net incoming resources before other recognised gains and losses 98 21 44 01 122 65
Realised gains on disposal of investment assets 683 322 385 142
Unrealised gaing and losses on revaluation of investment assets 9,10 07 149 238 384 284
Taxation charge ©n ¥ (1)
Actuanal gans and losses on defined benelt pension scheme 19 (25 8) (25 8) {132}
Net movement in funds 16 105 190 348 01 642 358
Fund balances at  Apnl 2014 16 212 22 5711 13 5958 5600
Fund balances at 31 March 2015 16 N7z 212 6057 14 6600 5958

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND

EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

§1UNO0Y 29 10dsy S00)sTNd],

2014/15 2013/14
£m £m Q

Income
Donations 16 12
Defra grant funding 390 380
Leisure boating and utiities 607 578
Investment income 314 299
Income from charitable activihes 190 153
Other income 75 15
Total iIncome 159.2 144 7
Expenditure
Costs of generating funds . (23 8) {20 2)
Chantable activities (136 9) (123 9)
Governance costs 4 {14)
Total expenditure (162 1) (1455)
Net income and expenditure before transfers 29) 08)
Transfer from the protected endowment fund 128 20
Net income and expenditure after transfers 99 12

An Income and Expenditure Account I1s an alternative summary of the information contained in the Statement of Financial
Actrvities and 1s included in the financial statements in order to comply with the Comparnies Act 2006 As required in

the Charity SORP, this statement excludes unrealised revaluations of investment assets and any movements within the
protected endowment funds 'Net income and expenditure after transfers' represents the 'Net incoming resources before
other recognised gams and losses' in the unrestnicted funds and restnicted income funds on the SoFA

The Trust uses the exemption conferred by the Companies Act 2006 in not prepaning a separate Income and Expenditure
Account for the Trust that excludes its wholly owned subsidiaries
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All amounts relate to continuing activities

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

Group Canal & River Trust
Note 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2015 2014 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 7 792 804 604 617
Heritage assets B - - - -
Investments
Property 9 5229 507 1 3423 3423
Dwversified investment funds 10 934 - 034 -
Subsidiaries 1 - - 1109 1109
Joint ventures
share of gross assets 11 383 369 - -
share of gross liabilities 1 (111) (9 4) - -
722.7 6150 607 0 514 9
Debtors Amounts falling due after one year 13 86 - 86 -
Current assets .
Stocks 12 13 11 11 08 ng
Debtors 13 430 820 515 81 4 B
Investments 1 61 57 . 40 Y
Cash at bank and in hand 525 49 1 283 332 ; § '.
1029 1379 809 119 4 "g
Current hiabihes § .
Creditors Amounts falhing due within one year 14 (65 4) (63 4) (57 6) (56 0) Tg'
Net current assets 375 745 233 63 4 ok
Total assets less current lrabiities 768 8 689 5 638.9 578 3 ék ¥
Creditors Amounts falling due after one year 14 {14 9) (17 4} (15 3) {17 8)
Prowisions for habilties 15 57) (8 1) {27) (4 6)
Net assets excluding pension fund (hability)/asset 748.2 664 0 620.9 5559
Pension fund (hability)/asset 19 (88 2} (68 2) (18) 137
Net assets including pension fund (hability)/asset 6600 5958 6191 569 6
Funds
Unrestricted funds
General fund 249 171 247 177
Designated fund 68 41 68 41
Restnicted funds
Protected endowment funds 626 ¢ 5733 586 2 546 5
Voluntary income funds 14 13 14 13
Total funds 16 660 O 505 8 6191 569 6

Approved by the Board of Trustees on 18 June 2015 and signed on their behalf by
‘ f o) L/\M ~
T Hales
Chairman

30 June 2015
Company number 7807276

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

2014/15 2014/15 2013/14 2013/14
£m £m £m £m

Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities (0.2) 63
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest paid 07 (0 6)
Interest received 19 46
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and 12 40
servicing of finance
Taxation (© 1) 01
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of operational fixed assets {46) (40)
Purchase of investment property (42 5} (22 2)
Sale of operational fixed assets 02 05
Sale of investment property 99 7 157
Repayment of loan note 315 -
Net investment in diversified funds (85 8) -
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial {1.5) (100)
investment
Investments in joint ventures
Repayment of loans made to joint ventures 40 28
Dividends from joint ventures 06 03
Net cash inflow from investments in joint ventures 4.6 31
Management of iquid resources
Payments into short term deposits 0 4) 57)
Cashflows from financing activities
Revolving credit facility arrangement fees (0 2) -
Movement in net cash 3.4 (22

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements

a) Reconcihation of net mcoming resources to cash outflow from operating activities

2014/15 2014/15 2013/14 2013/14
£m £m £m £m
Net incorming resources 79 59
ltems not involving the flow of cash
Interest receivable {net) (12) {4 0)
Depreciation 51 52
Loss / (profit) on sale of operational fixed assets 07 {02)
Dufference between payments to defined benefit pension scheme (58) (4 8)
and amount charged to expenditure
12 (3 6)
{Increase) / decrease in stocks (02) 01
(Increase) / decrease in debtors (62) 118
Increase / (decrease) in creditors 18 (4 2)
Decrease in provisions (24) (37)
Net cash (outflow)} / inflow from operating activities 02) 63
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b) Reconciliation of net cash inflow to movement in net funds

At 1 Apnl 2014 Cash flows At 31 March 2015

£m Em £m
Cash at bank and in hand 491 34 525
Liguid resources 57 04 61
Loan from Port of London Properties Ltd (12 9) - (12 8)
Net funds 419 38 45.7

NOTES RELATING TO THE ACCOUNTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Canal & River Trust {'the Trust’) have been prepared under the histonical cost convention,

with the exception of investments, which are included at market valuation The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP), Accounting and Reporting by Chanties, published in
March 2005, the Companies Act 2006 and applicable UK accounting standards In line with UK GAAP, investment properties
are not depreciated and are stated at market value This treatment 1s contrary to the Companies Act 2006, which states that
fixed assets should be depreciated but is, in the opinion of the directors, necessary in order to give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the company

The Trust's activibies, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and financial position,
and commentary on its financial activibes and s cash flows, are set out in the Trustees report (including Strategic Report)
on pages 4 to 59 and elsewhere in the financial statements

The financial planning process, including financial projections, has taken inte consideration the current economic climate and
its potential iImpact on the vanous sources of income and planned expenditure The Trustees have a reasonable expectation
that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they have
adopted the going concern basis in prepaning the annual report and accounts

A separate Statement of Financial Activity (SoFA) for the parent company 1s not presented with the Group financial
statements as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The net outgoing resources of the parent company
are disclosed in note 16 to the accounts

Basis of consolidation

.

The Group comprises the Canal & River Trust and its subsidiaries which are set out in note 11 to these accounts The principal
trading subsidiaries are Canal & River Trading CIC, a community interest company, and Briish Waterways Marinas Limited

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Trust and its subsidianes for the year ended
31 March 2015 and the comparative pencd

Subsidiartes are entities controlled by the Trust Control exists when the company has the power, directly or indirectly, to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activihes The financial statements of
subsidhanes are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences untif the date that
control ceases The turnover and expenditure of the subsidianes are included within the consolidated SoFA The assets
and labilibes are included on a line by hne basis in the consoldated balance sheet in accordance with FRS2 The financial
statements of all Group compames are adjusted, where necessary, to ensure the use of consistent accounting policies

Fund accounting

Reserve policies are set out on page 39 of the Trustees' report and in note 16 to these accounts Reserves are either
unrestricted or restricted funds

General Funds are unrestncted funds that are available for use at the Trustees’ discretion in accordance with the objectives
of the Trust
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Designated Funds are unrestrncted funds that are set aside at the discretion of the Trustees for specific purposes They would
otherwase form part of the general reserves

Restricted Income Funds are funds that are used in accordance with specific restnictions imposed by donors or by the nature
of an appeal or endowment The aim and use of each restnicted fund 1s set out in the notes to the financial statements

The Protected Endowment Fund 13 a restrnicted reserve and compnses the net value of the endowment assets and liabilties
transferred to the Trust on 2 July 2012 by the UK Government The endowment compnses the Protected Assets as defined
in the Grant Funding Agreement less the value of the habilities for the Trust's borrowings and pension fund liabilities that are
effectively secured on the endowment assets and less any other capital iabihes and creditors

The Protected Endowment Fund includes the net value of any unrealised revaluation surpluses that have ansen on the
endowment since the transfer and the net value of funds held in reserve for waterway infrastructure asset dowries where
such funds have been invested into assets contained within the Protected Endowment The asset dowry reserve will be
utiised to fund major repairs to the dowry assets when such reparrs or rebuilding 15 needed It will require some reahsation
of Investment assets at that tme to fund the cash outflow so as to ensure that the major reparr costs are not a drain on the
Trust's general reserve funds Net income anising from the investment assets 1s recognised in the general reserve to fund
day to day activiles, maintenance and repar expenditure on these waterway infrastructure assets
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The amount of retained post acquisition reserves held m subsidiary companies that are held as investments within the
Protected Endowment are shown in a separate reserve fund

Voluntary mcome recewved of less than £20,000, unless part of a larger project, 1s reported in aggregate Where voluntary
income 1s appled a final review of the allocation of expenditure 1s performed after a project or contract has been completed
which can give nse to a transfer between funds to ensure that the donor promise is fulfilled (see page 87 for further detail}

Incoming resources

Incoming resources are included in the SoFA when the Trust 15 legally entritled to the income and the amounts can be
quantified with reasonable accuracy If these conditions are not met then the income 1s deferred

Income i1s shown within two main categories in the Consohdated Statement of Financial Activities

+  Incoming rescurces from generated funds
«  Incoming resources from charitable activities

The following specific policies apply to categories of income

§1/v107 Modey [Bnuuy Isnit :;e}\yg

Incoming rescurces from generated funds
a) Voluntary income

1) Donation income s recogrised when received, except where fundraising campaigns are based around a specific
event date, in which case the accruals basis 1s used

u) Donations towards the Friends of the Canal & River Trust scheme are recogrised on recespt
m) Entilement to legacy iIncome s considered to be on the earlier of the date of receipt of finalised estate agcounts,

the date of payment or where there 1s sufficient evidence to prowvide the necessary certainty that the legacy will be
receved and the value 1s measurable with sufficient reliability

o)

) Gifts in kind for use by the Trust are included in the accounts at therr approximate market value at the date of receipt

v} Donated services and facilities (excluding volunteer ime which 1s not monetised) are included as ‘Voluntary income’
at their estimated value to the Trust when receved, and under the appropriate expenditure heading depending on the
nature of service or facility provided, at the same value and time

vi) Income from Gift Aid 1s recognised on submitting a reclaim to HM Revenue & Customs
b) Defra funding 1s accounted as a grant and 1s credhited to the SoFA when the conditions far the receipt of the grant have
been complied with and there 1s a reasonable assurance that the grant will be receved Further detads of the background

to this income, which forms a significant proportion of the Trust's iIncoming resources, can be found on page 38 of the
Trustees’ Report
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¢} Activities for generating funds

1} Boat licences and mooring permits These are invoiced in advance and income ts recognised on an accruals basis over
the term of the icence or permit

1) Income from marinas subsidiary Briish Waterways Marinas Limited (BWML) includes income from marina operations,
retall sales from chandlery and property rents  All income in BWML 15 accounted for in accordance with these group
accounting policies

m) Utilty income and water sales Income 1s received from utlity companies and other third parties in return for access
to the Trust's land, for example underground pipes Where these agreements are for fixed time penods, revenue i1s
recognised on a straight ine basis over the term of the agreement Sales of water supplied from the Trust’s waterway
network under a water sales agreement allow access to a continuous supply of water over the penod contracted
These are invoiced in arrears and revenue 1s accrued on a straight line basis on the assumption that water 1s used
at a constant rate

d) Investment income

1) Property rents Rental Income from investment property feased out under an operating lease i1s recognised in the SoFA
on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease Lease incentives granted are recognised as a reduction of rental
income The cost of the incentive 1s allocated over the lease term or a shorter penod ending on a date from which it is
expected the prevaling market rental will be payable Incentives are provided to customers in various forms such as rent
free peneds or funding towards property fit-out costs and are usually offered on signing a new contract Where such
incentives are provided, the farr value of the incentive 1s deferred and recognised in line with this accounting policy

1) Income from diversified investments includes dwvdend and interest payments distnbuted from investment funds and i1s
recogmised in the pented in which it 15 earmed See also the accounting policy for diversified investment funds below

gotafis . .

oort

m) Interest ncome denved from financing arrangements {deferred payment for goods or services provided) 1s recognised
in the SoFA using a market rate of interest or where this 1s unspecified the rate of interest for a similar debt instrument
Interest income on other types of basic debt instruments 1s recognised using the effective interest rate which discounts
all future cash flows back to the carrying value of the instrument

“ bR

v) Divdend income 1s recognised when the Group's night to recewve payment 1s established

v} Income from endowments The Asset Dowry funds within the Protected Endowment Fund, arising on acquisition of the
Briish Waterways assets and habilities (descnbed above under Fund accounting), 1s restricted

Incorming resources from charitable activities
a) Maintenance agreements and other waterway related income This 1s income receved from third parties (such as a local
authority) to maintain an area of the waterway network The revenue Is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of

the agreement reflecting the assumption that maintenance i1s performed at a constant rate over the term of the agreement

b

—

Waterway regeneration and restoration This 1s income towards restonng and improving the waterways network The
income 1s generally accounted for as a contract for services and income is recognised as unrestricted income in the
SoFA to the extent that the service has been delivered |n the balance sheet any amounts received in advance are treated
as deferred income creditors and amounts due but not paid are accrued income debtors Revenue 1s recogmised in
proportton to the staged completion of the work in accordance with relevant funding agreements

As well as contracts for services, the Trust receves restricted funding which have restricted purposes These are
accounted as restncted income funds and are recogmised when conditions fulfiling the Trust's entitlement to the income
are met

¢) Museums and attractions Income from entrance fees and sale of goods from museums and wisitor centres are recognised
on a point of sales basis

Resources expended

All expenditure 1s accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings that aggregate all costs related
to the category Irrecoverable VAT 1s either charged to the appropnate heading or it 1s capitalised as appropnate

.
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The consolidated SoFA defines costs in three specific categones

+  Cost of generating funds
. Charttable actvities
+  Governance costs

Cost of generating funds

a} Costs of generating voluntary income include fundraising costs incurred in seeking voluntary contributions This includes
the costs of supporting the Friends of the Canal & River Trust scheme

b) Costs of activities for generating funds include the direct costs of generating income from boat licences, moorings, utility
wayleaves and easements, water sales and retall

c) Investment management costs include the costs of generating income from the Trust's property investments, such as
rents and service charges and the Pariners Capital investment management fees

Charitable activihes

Resources expended on charitable activities relate to the work carned out on the core purposes of managing, maintaining
and repairing the waterways infrastructure and the museums' collections and artefacts

Governance costs *

Governance costs are those associated with the governance arrangements rather than the day-to-day management of the
Trust These include the costs of meetings and associated support costs for the Trustees, Trust Council and Waterway
Partnerships as well as the strategic planning processes that contribute to the future development of the Trust It also includes
the cost of asset valuations as well as the costs of internal and external audit and prepanng Trustees' Report and Accounts

Support costs

Support costs representing expenditure on administration, financial management, human resources and information systems
and commumications are allocated to the costs of generating funds, charitable actvities, investment and governance on the
basis of headcount or on the estimated service delivered by the support service or other bases if these are more approprate

Interests in joint ventures

The Group has a number of contractual arrangements with other parties that represent joint ventures These joint ventures
are established through an interest in a imited company, partnership or other entity The Group recagnises its interest in the
entity's assets and habilites using the gross equity method of accounting In accordance with FRS9 Associates and Jomnt
Ventures The names of joint ventures, the nature of the business and details of the shares held by the Group are disclosed
in note 11 to these accounts

Intra-Group balances and transactions, and any unrealised gains ansing from intra-Group transactions with joint ventures, are
ehminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements Unrealised gans resulting from transactions with joint ventures
are eliminated against the carrying value of the investment in the joint venture

Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures in the Trust's company only accounts
Investments are stated at cost, less any provision for impairment

Impairment

The carrying values of the Trust's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 18 any indication
of permanent impairment f such an indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount 1s estmated The recoverable amount
of an asset 1s the greater of is net reahisable value and its value In use An imparrment loss s recogrised in the SoFA as
addrtional depreciation of the impaired asset whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
except in the case of investment property where it I1s included within recognised gains and losses on investment assets

Tangible fixed assets

Expenditure on the purchases of land and the cost of construction and major improvement of bulldings 1s capitalised
Expenditure on the purchase, addition to and improvement of boats, plant and equipment in excess of £1,000 1s also capitahsed
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Tangible fixed asssts are stated at cost, net of depreciahon and any provision for permanent diminution in value Depreciation
1s provided on all tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated
residual value (if any), of each asset on a straight-line basis over ds expected usefu! Ife, as follows

Freehold buildings 40 years

Leasehold land and bulldings Over the unexpired term of the lease
Maintenance craft and floating plant Between 10 and 25 years

Other plant and machinery Between 5 and 10 years

Vehicles 5 years

Herntage assets

The Trust has two classes of heritage assets
a) Waterways infrastructure

The Trust maintains mland waterways that include the assets hsted in note 8 to these accounts These waterway assets
are maintained regularly as an integrated network to ensure that the waterways can be used for continuous nawvigation and
access The assets are referred to as the Waterway Infrastructure and are held under a perpetual trust from Defra, known
as The Waterways Infrastructure Trust, which specifies that the waterways are to be held in trust and retained in perpetuity
for public benefit for the fallowing purposes

+  to operate and manage the Infrastructure Property for public benefit, use and enjoyment including nawigation, walking on
towpaths, and for recreation or other leisure-time pursuits of the public in the interest of their health and social welfare,

*  to protect and conserve, for public benefit, sites, objects and buildings of archaeological, architectural, engineering or
historic interest on, i the vicinity of, or otherwise associated with the Infrastructure Property, and

port 2014/15

+  for public benefit, the conservation, protection and improvement of the natural environment and landscape of the
Infrasiructure Property ’

.

The Trust does not consider that rehable cost or valuaton information can be obtained for the Waterway Infrastructure The
Waterway Infrastructure 15 generally around 200 years old and the costs of maintaining the Waterway Infrastructure i a safe
and accessible state significantly exceed any income generated from them The Trust does not consider that any meaningful
value can be placed on the Waterways Infrastructure and therefore does not recognise those assets on its balance sheet
Expenditure to mamntain and repair these assets 1s charged to the SoFA as incurred
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b) Waterway museum artefacts collections and archives

The Trust maintains over 15,000 herntage artefacts in its collection and over 100,000 archive records of the construction and
operation of the histonc waterways These items are held for display to the public or in secure storage facilites The Trust
does not consider that reliable cost or valuation information could be obtained for the vast majority of items in the collection
and archives and that, even if valuations could be obtaned, the costs would be onerous compared with the additional benefit
denved by the Trust and the users of the accounts This 1s because of the diverse nature of the assets held, the number of
assets held and the lack of comparable market values The Trust, therefore, does not recognise these assets on its balance
sheet Expenditure on these assets, that is required to preserve or prevent deterioration of the collection and archive items, 1s
charged to the SoFA as incurred

Further information on the management and preservation of the Trust's heritage assets 1s given in note 8 to the accounts

Investment properties

Investment properties are included at valuation on an open market basis Valuations are carned out on an annual basis
Independent professionally qualified surveyors carrned out a valuation of all properties in March 2014 For the valuation at 31
March 2015, independent professionally qualfied surveyors valued 90% of the properhes by value The remaining 10% were
valued by qualified surveyors employed by the Trust The movements in valuatron and profits on sale of investment properties
1s presented m other recogrised gains and losses on the SoFA and comprises both reaised and unrealised gams and losses
The Trust accounts for disposals of investment properties upon completion of sale or when the sale 1s uncondiional Valuation
costs are included within governance costs on the SoFA
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The Companies Act 2006 requires all properties to be depreciated However, this requirement conflicts with the generally
accepted accounting principle set out In SSAP 19 The directors consider that, because these properties are not held for
consumption, but for their iInvestment potential, to depreciate them would not give a true and farr view and that it 1s necessary
to adopt SSAP 19 1n order to give a true and fair view of the financial posttion of the company

If this departure from the Act had not been made, the profit for the financial year would have beer: reduced by depreciation
However, the amount of depreciation cannot reasonably be quantified, because depreciation 1s only cne of many factors reflected
in the annual valuation and the amount which might otherwise have been shown cannct be separately identified or quantified

Diversified investments

The Trust has adopted a total return approach to the investment of Protected Endowment funds in diversified investment
funds Quoled investments are stated at open market value and unquoted Investments are stated at most recent underlying
net asset values from fund managers, adjusted for subsequent captal calls or distributions In the ScFA income from the
nvestments 1s recogmsed as ‘mvestment mncome’ in the Protected Endowment Fund Realised and unreahised nvestment
gains and losses are recognised as ‘investment asset gains and losses’ in the Protected Endowment Fund A proportion
of the unapplied total return 15 allocated to income funds and is separately identified in the SoFA as a transfer from the
Protected Endowment Fund to the General income

Leased property, plant and equipment
a) Group as a lessee

All leases inlo the Group are leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental to legal ownership of the asset
have not been transferred by the lessor and are therefore classified as operating leases Rentals payable adjusting for the
effact of lease incentves are charged in the SoFA on a straight IIine basis over the lease term

b) Group as a lessor

Operational property assets leased out under operating leases are included in fixed assets and depreciated over therr estimated
useful lves Property assets held for mvestment, that are leased out under operating leases are included in Investment property
Rental income, adjusting for the effect of lease incentives, 1s recognised on a straight ine basis aver the lease term

c} Grant of long lease over investment property

Where the Trust grants a long lease over investment property to maintain an interest in the future use of the land that s
disposed of having 1ssue onto or bordering the waterways, the substance of the transaction 1s that the Trust effectively
disposes of its interest, but retains a reversionary interest, and reflects the resultant profit / loss at the point of the disposal
in accordance with the investment property accounting policy above In order for a long lease to be treated as a disposal it
would be usual for the lease term to be for the major part of the economic Iife of the property (typically more than 50 years)
and at the inception of the lease the present value of minimum lease payments would amount to substantially all of the fair
value of the leased property

d) Lease incentives

The value of lease incentives is recogrised on a straight-ine basis over the lease term, or if shorter than the full lease term,
over the period to the review date on which the rent 1s expected to be adjusted to the prevaling market rent

Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value
Current asset investments

Current asset mvestments are short-term deposits of cash for terms where the notice perod for withdrawal 1s more than one day

Taxation
L]

As a registered chanity, the Cana! & River Trust 1s exempt from taxation of mcome and gains faling within Part 11 Corporation
Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992 to the extent these are apphed to its charitable objects

No tax charge arises m any subsidiaries of the Trust to the extent that the subsidiary ts able to gift all taxable profits ta the Trust
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To the extent that taxation does anse in the Canal & River Trust, its subsidianes and joint venture companies, it 1s accounted
tn accordance with FRS16 Current tax and FRS19 Deferred tax

Pension scheme
The Trust operates defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes
a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme 1s a muth-employer scheme with the Trust being the principal employer Qther participating
employers include Briish Waterways Mannas Limited and British Waterways Board (trading as Scottish Canals) In
accordance with the terms of the transfer from Bntish Waterways, Scottish Canals 1s only responsible for any future deficit
ansing following the transfer date of 2 July 2012 Any future recovery of deficit attnbutable to Scottish Canals i1s under a
contractual arrangement with the Trust and 1s separate from the Trustees of the defined benefit scheme

The penston habilities and assets are recorded n ine with FRS17 Retirement benefits, with a valuation undertaken by an
independent actuary FRS17 measures the value of pension assets and iabilites at the balance sheet date, determines the
benefits accrued in the year and the interest on assets and hlabiities The value of benefits accrued 1s used to determine

the pension charge in the SoFA and the expected return on the Fund's assets and interest cost on the Fund's labilities are
allocated across the appropriate Incoming/outgoing resource categories The change in value of assets and habilites ansing
from asset valuation, changes in benefits, actuanal assumptions, or change in the level of deficit attributable to members 1s
recognised in the SoFA within actuanal gains/losses on defined benefit pension schemes The resulting pension fund hability
or asset 1s shown on the balance sheet

An accounting jJudgement has been taken that the Scheme's interest in the Canal & River Pension Investments LP, which i1s
a subsidiary of the Trust, does not represent a plan asset for the purposes of the Group consolidated accounts because it

1s a financial instrument 1ssued by the Group and therefore, has not been taken into account in arrving at the Group pension
scheme deficit presented in these financial statements

b) Defined contribution scheme
Pension contnbuhions are charged to the SoFA as incurred
c) Other employee benefits

Post-employment benefits other than pensions are re-assessed annually at the reporting date by independent qualified
actuaries using discount rates consistent with those required for pension habilities under FRS17

Provisicns

A provision i1s recognised in the balance shest when the Group has a present legal or constructive oblgation as a result of a
past event, and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of economic benefits wili be required to settle the obligaton Prowvisions are not
recognised for future operating losses Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in setilement 1s determined by considening the class of ebligations as a whole A prowvision 1s recognised even if the
likelthoed of an outflow with respect to any one tem included in the same class of obligations may be small Prowvisions are
measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obhgation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks specific to the obligation The increase in the
provision due to passage of ime i1s recognised as interest expense

Qutstanding claims reported in Canal & River Re-insurance imited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Trust, comprise
provisions for the estimated cost of setthng all clams, incurred up to but not paid, at the balance sheet date whether reported
or not, together with all refated claims handling expenses Outstanding claims are based on latest available cedant advices
with provisions for incurred but not reported claims (IBNR) being estimated by reference to historical experience, adjusted
where appropnate for actual post year end reported data

The estimation of claims IBNR 1s generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling
claims zalready notified to the company, where more information about the claim event 1s avallable
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2 INCOMING RESOURCES

2014/15 2013/14
£m £m

Incoming resources from generated funds includes

Donations

General donations to the Trust 15 07
Gifts in kind 0.1, 04
Legactes - 01
Voluntary income 16 12
Defra grant funding 39.0 390
Leisure boating and meorings 33.8 324
Income from marinas operated by BWML 71 66
Income from leisure boating 409 390
Utility income and water sales 26.1 247
investment property 408 351
Interest recevable 03 34
Premiums earned by Canal & River Reinsurance Ltd 13 12
Other investment iIncome 17 12
Totat return apphed from diversified investment * 23 -
Investment income 46.4 419
Share of Income from joint ventures 188 87
Incoming resources from generated funds 1728 154 5

* Tatal return applied from diverstfied investment see note 10
Gifts in kind of £51k included support for cur winter works programme from Kier valued at £37k

A one-oft ncome receipt n 2014/15 of £7 5m from a contractual nght associated with our property interests in the London
Dacklands area 1s reported as “Other tncoming resources™ in the SoFA.

3 TOTAL RESOURCES EXPENDED

Direct Costs Support Costs 2014/15 2013/14
£m £m £m £€m

a) Cost of generating funds
Voluntary income 18 09 27 22
Leisure boating and moorings 76 20 96 91
Marnnas operated by BWML 57 . 57 61
Utility tncome and water sales 16 o8 24 24
Investment management costs 112 27 139 116
Total cost of generating funds 279 64 343 314
b) Chantable actwities .
Waterway infrastructure maintenance & repairs 1077 102 117 9 1108
Waterway regeneration and restoration 135 15 150 97
Museums and atracthions 3t 07 38 34
Grants to other orgarisations 02 - 02
Chantable activities 124.5 124 136 9 1239
Governance 08 06 14 14
Total resources expended on chantable 125.3 130 138 3 125 3

activities and governance
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3 TOTAL RESOURCES EXPENDED (CONTINUED)

Included within Governance costs are the costs of audit (both internal and external), invesiment vatuation fees, and the AGM and
Committee costs

Auditor’s fees and expenses include the following

2014/15 2013714
£000 £000

Fees payable to the auditors of Canal & River Trust
in respect of the chanty audit 154 151
in respect of subsidiary audits * 64 39
Cther non-audit services 41 7
Total fees payable to auditor 259 197

* Audt fees in respect of subsidiary audits accounted for in 2014/15 includes £32,500 in respect of 2013/14

4 SUPPORT COSTS

Offices Finance Human Management 2014/15 2013/14

& IT Resources & Other

£m £m £€m £m £m £m
Voluntary income 01 03 - 05 0.9 07
Leisure boating and moornngs 02 11 01 06 20 25
Utility ncome and water sales 01 03 - 04 o8 08
Investment management costs. 01 16 01 09 27 28
Waterway infrastructure mantenance & repairs 14 49 13 26 102 109
Waterway regeneration and restoration o1 04 o1 0g 15 13
Museums and aftractions 01 03 01 02 07 08
Governance - 03 - 03 06 06
Total support costs 21 92 17 64 19.4 20 2

Support costs are allocated to the costs of generating funds, charitable activities and governance on the basis of headcount
or on the estimated service delivered by the support service or other bases If these are more appropriate

5 EMPLOYEE COSTS

No remuneration was paid to any members of the Board of Trustees Travel and accommodation expenses were reimbursed by
the Trust to 5 individuals {2014 8) totaling £5,381 (2014 £9,344)

The average number of persons employed during the period on a full-time equivalent basis was

Group

2014/15 2013/14

Number Number
Generating voluntary income 11 6
Generating income from leisure boating and utilities 185 178
Investment management 36 37
Waterway infrastructure mantenance and reparr 1,115 1,084
Waterway regeneration and restoration 31 33
Museumns and attractions 50 14
Governance 6 6
Support functions 170 170
Total number of persons 1,604 1,555
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5 EMPLOYEE COSTS (CONTINUED)

Total employment costs were

Group
2014/15 201314
£m £m
Wages and salanes 47.1 436
Social security costs 41 38
Defined benefit pension costs (see note 19) 65 71
Defined contnbution pension costs 0.6 05
Total employment costs 583 550

The number of employees whose remuneration duning the penod (including taxable benefits in kind but not employer pension

costs) fell within the following ranges were

Group

2014/15 2013714

Number Number
£60,000 - £70,000 28 21
£70,001 - £80,000 11 18
£80,001 - £80,000 S
£90,001 - £100,000 4 8
£100,001 - £116,000 2 -
£110,001 - £120,000 2 4
£120,001 - £130,000 3 2
£130,001 - £140,000 - 1
£140,001 - £150,000 1 1
£170,001 - £180,000 1 1
£180,001 - £190,000 1 1
£190,001 - £200,000 2 1

55 (2014 64) higher pard employees are accruing retirement benefits under the Waterways Pension Fund defined benefit
scheme Payments to the defined contribution pension scheme in respect of 4 (2014 2) higher paid employees amounted

to £23k (2014 £6k)

The remuneration dunng the year for Richard Parry, chief executive, compnsed a salary of £180,782 (including car allowance

of £9,618)

There were two employees whose remuneration during the year was higher than the chief executive

Stuart Mills, property director, received a salary of £148,969, perfarmance related pay of £30,113 reflecting the strong
performance of our property portfolio in the year ended 31 March 2014, and benefits in kind {(including company car)

of £11,320, totaling £190,402

Vince Moran, operations & assel management director, received a salary of £183,547 (including £21,700 in lieu of a pension
contrbution) and benefits in kind {including company car) of £9,048, totalling £192,5685 Mr Meran was the Trust’s highest

paid employee in the pencd of this report

-
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6 TAXATION

The Canal & River Trust is a registered chanty and as such 1s entitled to certain tax exemptions on income and profits from
investments, and surpluses on any trading activities carried out in furtherance of the Charity’s pnmary objectives, if these
profits and surpluses are apphed solely for chartable purposes

It 1s expected that the Trust's subsidianes will give all therr profits to the Trust, normally resulting in no tax hability However,
on the transfer of the actities m England and Wales to the Trust, certain histonical current and deferred tax balances in

British Waterways and its subsidiaries were also transferred

Charged to Statement of Financial Activities

Group
2014/15 2013/14
Tax &m £m
Current tax 1) (01}

Coarporation tax i1s calculated at 21% (2014 23%) of the assessable profits for the period

The current tax charge for the penod can be reconciled to the Net Incoming Resources before Other Recognised Gains and
Losses as follows

Group
2014/15 2013/14
£m £m
Net Incoming Resources before transfer and acquisition 122 59
Tax charge at the UK corporate tax rate of 21% (2014 23%) (2 6) {1 4)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profits o1 01)
Charitable iIncome/expenses exempt from tax 19 14
Accelerated capital allowances - o1
Losses carned forward o7 {0 1)
Current tax charge o1 {01)

Deferred Tax
As noted above, the Trust s a registered charity and as such it 1s expected that its income and profits from investments
and surpluses on any trading actvities carnied out in furtherance of the Trust's primary abjectives will qualfy for exemption

from tax

It i1s also expected that the Trust's subsidiaries will give all their profits to the Trust, normally resultng in no tax hability arsing
in those subsidianes Accordingly, deferred tax has not been recognised on any timing differences

A Group company has an unrecognised deferred tax hability of £0 6m (2014 £0 4m) at 31 March 2015 Deferred tax has not
been recogmsed as 1t 1s expected that the subsiciary will transfer any profits 1n future periods to the Trust by way of gift aid

A Group company has carried forward tax losses of £5 Om {2014 £8 6m) at 31 March 2015 The losses relate to the
company's interest in hmited partnerships and can only be offset against future trading profits from the relevant partnership
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6 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Carporation tax creditor

At 1 April 2014  (Repad) / pard Current year tax Carned forward

SIUTIOD0V 2y J0ddT S99)STLIT,

movement at 3t March
2015
£m £m £m £m
Group
Corporation tax - - 01 01
Canal & River Trust
Corporation tax 01 - ©1) -

Value added tax

The Canal & River Trust and its subsidiaries are registered for VAT Any irrecoverable VAT on expenditure i1s charged to the
appropnate heading on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Actvities or 1s caprtalised as appropriate

7. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Boats, vehicles,

= plant and
s‘é Group Operational land and buldings equipment
g Freehold Leasehold Total
;3; £m £m £m £m
g Cost
2 At 1 April 2014 47 7 48 368 893
"E Transfers from investment property (note 9) 02 - - 02
3 Addtions 03 05 38 46
§a. Disposals (0 8) } © 2 (10)
o At 31 March 2015 474 53 40 4 93 1
. Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 13 03 73 89
Provision for the period 09 02 40 51
Disposals - - 01) 1)
At 31 March 2015 22 05 12 139
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 46 4 45 295 804
At 31 March 2015 452 48 292 792
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7 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Boats, vehicles, plant

Canal & River Trust Operational land and builldings and equipment

Freehold Leasehold Total

£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Aprl 2014 37 4 04 318 69.6
Transfers from investment property (note 9) 02 - 01 03
Addrions 03 - 35 3.8
Disposals {0 8) - 02 {1.0)
At 31 March 2015 371 04 352 72.7
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2014 12 - 67 79
Provision for the period 09 01 35 45
Disposals - - o1 01)
At 31 March 2015 21 0.1 101 123
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 36 2 04 251 617
At 31 March 2015 350 03 251 60.4

8 HERITAGE ASSETS

Hentage assets are defined as tangible property with hustonical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental
qualities which are held and maintaned principally for therr contribution to knowledge and culture The assets within the
Waterways Infrastructure Trust and the museum artefact collection and archives fall within this definition and are accordingly
categonsed as hentage assets

As explained in note 1 Accounting policies and In accordance with UK accounting standards, the Trust does not consider that
any meaningful value can be placed on the Waterways Infrastructure and therefore does not recognise those assets on its
balance sheet Expenditure to maintain and reparr these assets 1s charged to the SoFA as incurred

Land & builldings - the canals and nvers comprised within the Waterways Infrastructure Trust

The Canal & River Trust s the guardian of 2,000 miles of historic waterways across England and Wales Many of our
waterways were built at the height of the industrial revolution and are home to over 2,700 listed structures and 97 scheduled
ancient monuments

These assets are maintained regularly as an integrated network to ensure that the waterways can be used for navigation and
public access The assets are held under a perpetual trust from Defra, known as The Waterways Infrastructure Trust, which
specifies that the waterways are to be held in trust and retained in perpetuity for public benefit for the following purposes

+  to operate and manage the infrastructure property for public benefit, use and enjoyment including nawngation, walking on
towpaths, and for recreation or other leisure-time pursuits of the public in the interest of their health and social welfare,

+  to protect and conserve, for public benefit, sites, objects and buildings of archaeclogical, architectural, engineering or
histonc interest on, in the vicinty of, or otherwise associated with the infrastructure property, and

for public benetit, the conservation, protection and improvement of the natural environment and landscape of the
infrastructure property

The Waterways Infrastructure Trust settlement agreement contains a detaled working defimtion of the infrastructure property
In summary the infrastructure property includes alt land and infrastructure which i1s necessary to (a) intand navigation on a
waterway, or (b) public access to, and use of, a towpath The following 1s a selection of the main principal assets (as defined
by the Trust's Asset Management Plan) included in the infrastructure property
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8 HERITAGE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Asset description

Length / number

31 March 2015

31 March 2014

Canals 1,571 miles 1,571 miles
Rivers 342 miles 342 miles
Feeders 118 miles 118 miles
Towpaths 1,956 miles 1,956 miles
Aqueducts 336 336
Bridges — Accommodation (1) 1,656 1,651
Bridges ~- Public Road (1) 875 878
Bridges — Towpath/Tumover (1} 446 443
Culverts (2) 1,931 1,910
Major cuttings {3} 850 837
Major embankments (3} 749 745
Docks {4) 13 17
Dry docks (4) 25 20
Permitted waste sites 23 25
Locks 1,583 1,583
Pumping stations 74 75
Reservoirs 73 73
Sluices 508 510
Stop/Satety/Flood Gates (5) 67 86
Tunnels &5 55
Waste weirs, Canal 659 660
River werrs 129 129
Werr-ed locks 84 84

Boat lifts {Navigation)

The following are other classifications of the infrastructure assets many of which are also recorded in the principal assets

listed above

Historic battlefields 9 9
Listed butlldings 2,694 2 698
Scheduled ancient monuments 49 47
Sttes of Special Scientific Interest (SSSl's) 63 63

{1) Brnidges - the changes are generally due to reclassification of ownership or bridge type during 2014/15

(2) Culverts — the changes are due to increased focus to identify possible new culverts and agree ownership during 2014/15

(3) Cuttings and embankments — the changes In numbers are generally due to the re-categonsation of assets that are managed as pnncipal assets
{4) Docks/Dry docks — the changes are generally due to reclassification of dock type during 2014/15

{5) Stop/Salety/Flood gates — the reduction during the year results from the identification of those that are no longer operationally required

The number of principal assets in each category are subject to change from time 1o time due to additions, disposals and
reclassification (e g where the dmensions of an embankment has been re-measured and found to be within the dmensions
required for a 'major’ embankment)

Museum artefact collections and archives

The Trust maintains over 15,000 hentage artefacts in its collection and over 100,000 archive records of the construction
and operation of the historic waterways Artefacts and archive records include tools, machinery, insignia and memorabilia,
clothing, decorative arts, pantings, photographs, maps and plans, drawings, business papers and letters dating from the
1780s to the present day The Trust also mantains a histortc fleet of 81 boats These items are held for display to the public,
or in secure storage facilties, and the assets and artefacts have histoncal, scientfic and technological quahties that are
maintained for public benefit, knowledge and culture
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9 INVESTMENT PROFPERTY

Group Canal & River Trust
Freehold Leasehold Total Freehold Leasehold Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Carrying value (market value)

At 1 Apnl 2014 491 5 156 507 1 3278 145 3423

Transfers to fixed assets (note 7) (0 2) - 02 ©2) - (0 2)
Addhions 424 - 42 4 396 - 396

Disposals {57 0) (21) (59 1) {55 1) (21) (57.2)
Revaluation 327 - 327 176 02 178

At 31 March 2015 509 4 135 5229 3297 126 342 3

The carrying value at 31 March 2015 1s based upon these valuations

Investment properties are valued annually and included at valuation on an open market basis GVA Grimley Ltd, a regulated firm
of Chartered Surveyors carned out a valuation of all properties in March 2014 For the valuation at 31 March 2015, GVA Gnmley
Ltd valued 90% of the properties by value The remaining 10% were valued by qualified surveyors employed by the Trust

10 DIVERSIFIED INVESTMENT FUNDS

(a) Movement on diversified income funds

Group & Canal & River Trust
2014/15 2013/14
£m £m
At 1 Apnl -
Addions 860 -
Dividend income 10 -
Investment management costs 03
Revaluaticn gain 67
At 31 March 934
{b) Disclosure of tota! return approach to diversified iIncome funds
Group & Canal &
River Trust
Endowment Unappled Total investment Designated Total
total return  from Endowment Fund Funds
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnil 2014
Trust for investment - - - -
Unapplied total return - - - -
Movements in reporting period
Additions to investment funds 800 800 60 86 0
Investment return dividends - 10 10 1.0
Investment return reahsed and unrealised gains - 60 60 07 67
Less |nvestment management costs - ©3) {03 (0.3)
8OO 87 867 67 934
Total return apphed to income - (23 {2 3) 2.3)
Net movement in reporting period 800 44 844 67 911
At 31 March 2015
Trust for investment 800 800 67 867
Unapplied total return 44 44 44
80O 44 844 67 911
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10 DIVERSIFIED INVESTMENT FUNDS (CONTINUED)

A

Quoted investments are stated at open market value and unquoted investments are stated at most recent underlying net asset
values from fund managers, adjusted for subsequent caprital calls or distnbutions

During the year, the Investment Committee oversaw the first year of implementation of the new Investment Strategy for the
Trust involving a diversification of the Trust's investment portfolio held in the Protected Endowment away from pure property
investment to provide some measure of nsk protection Pursuant to this strategy, the seleciled external investment manager,
Partners Capital, has invested £80m on behalf of the Trust in non-property investments towards the overall objective of
around 20% diversification away from property in a 3 to 5 year bme horizon The Trust also instructed Partners Caprtal to
invest £6m from the Pension Accumulation Designated Fund (see note 18) into a separate investment fund

11 INVESTMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES
CANAL & RIVER TRUST 2014/15 2013/14
Investments in subsidiaries £m £m

Shares at cost less amounts written off

At 1 April 1109 1100
Transfer from The Waterways Trust - 05
Addions - 10
Provision for reduction in farr value - (0 6)
At 31 March 1109 1109
Subsidiary undertakings

Canal & River Trust's subsichary undertakings are as follows and have a 31 March year end unless stated

Blackwall Estates Ltd manages property in London Docklands {year end 30 June) The directors of the Trust have not
chosen to bring the year end into line with that of the Trust as the trading results and net assets are immaterial

British Waterways Marinas Ltd operates inland waterway marnnas

Canal & River Trading CIC 1s an operating subsidiary of the Group and holds a small portfolio of investment properties,
investment in joint ventures (see below) as well as other miscellaneous trading activities

Canal & River Pension Investments LP ("SLP"), 1s a mited partnership registered in Scotland that manages investment
property on behalf of the partners In 2012/13 the Trust invested £33m i the SLP The Trust exercises sufficient control
over the partnership to meet the defimition of a subsidiary undertaking in accordance with the Companies Act 2006
s1162 and FRS 2 Accounting for subsidiary undertakings

= Canal & River Pension Partner Ltd holds an investment in the Canal & River Pension Investments LP from which it
derives income In 2012/13 the Trust invested £19m in this company

Canal & River Reinsurance Ltd provides reinsurance to the Trust in respect of property, motor and public hability

*  Woaterways Pension Trustees Ltd acts as trustee to the Waterways Pension Fund The book value of the Trust's interest
1s represented by a debt of equal amount due to the subsidiary and both have been elmmated from the Trust's accounts

«  The Waterways Trust and its subsidiaries, NWM Enterprises Ltd, Ribble Link Construction and Operation Ltd and the
Rochdale Canal Company were acquired on 26 July 2012 The undertakings and assets of The Waterways Trust were

transferred to Canal & River Trust on 1 April 2013 These subsidianes did not trade during the year ended 31 March 2015

All subsidiaries are 100% wholly owned by the Trust and, with the exception of Canat & River Reinsurance Ltd {which 1s 1n
treland), are registered and operate within the United Kingdom
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11 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

2014/15

The contribution of subsidiary companies to the Trust’s funds in the period to 31 March 2015 was as follows

Net incoming
resources before
other recognmised Net assets at
Income Expenditure gains and losses 31 March 2015

£m £m £m £m

Canal & River Trading CIC 04 (03) 01 371
British Waterways Marinas Ltd 71 62 09 133
Canal & River Pension Investments LP 125 (50) 75 175 4
Canal & River Pension Partner Lid - - - 190
Canal & River Reinsurance Limited 13 {0 3) 10 30
Other minor subsidiaries - 04 04 {16)
213 (11 4) 99 246 2

2013/14
The contribution of subsidiary companies to the Trust's funds in the peniod to 31 March 2014 was as follows ‘ g
-5
Net Incoming _ f;j. ’
resources before '§_ :
other recogrised Net assets at &
Income Expenditure gamnsandlosses 31 March 2014 B
£m £m £m £m
Canal & Rwer Trading CIC 04 02 02 379
British Waterways Marinas Ltd 66 (8 0) 06 140
Canal & River Pension Investments LP 92 50 42 160 4
Canal & River Pension Partner Lid - - - 190
* Canal & River Reinsurance Limited 13 (0 6) 07 22
Other minor subsidiaries 09 (11) 02 23
184 {129) 55 2312
JOINT VENTURES
GROUP 2014/15 2013114
investments in joint ventures £m £m
At 1 Apnil 275 300
Loans made 07 -
Loans repaid 47 (28
Share of revenue profits 43 06
Dividends paid (0 6) (0 3)
At 31 March 272 275
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11 INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group's share of assets and habilities of joint ventures, which are included in the consolidated financial statements,
are as follows

31 March 31 March

2015 2014

£m £m

Fixed assets 01 01
Current assets 382 368
Share of gross assets 383 369
Current habiliies (111) {9 4)
Share of gross habilities (11 1) © 4
Share of net assets 272 275

The Group's share of incoming resources from joint ventures was £18 8m (2014 £8 7m) and share of resources expended
was £14 5m (2014 £8 1m) Ali income arises from investment in property developments

Investments In joint ventures

The following informaton relates 1o those jont ventures of the Group at the year-end whose results or financial position,

in the opinion of the Trustees, principally affect the figures of the Group All joint ventures of the Group are unlisted and
are registered and operate in the United Kingdom Al investments in joint ventures are held in Canal & River Trading CIC,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Trust

Accounting peniod Equity

end date used in  Profit for interest
these accounts  the year* held™ Main actwity

£m %

Joint ventures

=1 Waterside Regeneration LP 31 December 2014 34 49 5% Property development
City Road Basin Ltd 31 December 2014 - 49% Property development
H20 Urban LLP 31 December 2014 02 50% Property development
Paddington Basin Business Barges Ltd 31 December 2014 - 43% Office management

* The profit for the year of each joint venture, based on the accounts made up to the dates indicated
** Whilst the Trust retains a 49% shareholding in some joint venture companies, the voting nghts and profit share 1s 50 50

A new property development joint venture with Birmingham City Council, Icknield Port Loop LLP, was registered with
Companies House on 19 January 2015 and was dormant for the remainder of the year

12 STOCKS
Group Canal & River Trust
31Mar15 31Mar14 31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14
£m £m £m £m
Raw materials 09 07 09 07
Finished goods and goods for resale 04 04 02 01
13 11 11 08
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13 DEBTORS

Amounts falling due within one year Group Canal & River Trust
31 Mari5 31Mar14 31 Mar15 31 Mar 14
Em £m £m £m
Trade debtors 19.5 195 17 2 176
Gift ad and dividends recevable from subsidianes - 158 57
Other amounts owed from Group undertakings - 22 09
Prepayments and accrued income 132 106 6.4 55
Deferred consideration agreements 90 198 9.0 198
Loan notes - 315 - 315
Corporation tax 0.1 - 01 01

Value added tax 0.7 - o7

Other debtors 0.5 06 01 03
43.0 820 515 814

There 1s a deferred consideration agreement in place with Traws Perkins for land sold to them in 2010 in Paddington, London
The deferred sum of £9m s secured and attracts a coupon of 7 2% p a The outstanding sum 1s due to the Trust no later than

8th October 2015

Loan notes amounting to £48 Om were onginally subscribed from CWG (Wood Wharf} Holdings Ltd on 18 January 2012 and
are guaranteed by Canary Wharf Group PLC Duning the year the remaining loan notes to the value of £31 5m were repaid

Amounts falling due after more than one year Group Canal & River Trust
3tMar15 31Mar14 31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14
£m £m £m £m
Deferred consideration agreements 86 86 -
86 8.6 -

14 CREDITORS

Duning the year property was sold to Canary Wharf Group PLC on deferred payment terms including interest at 7%
N The outstanding debt of £8 6m 1s due for payment to the Trust no later than 30 September 2018

Amounts falling due within one vear Group Canal & River Trust
31 Mar15 31 Mar14 31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14
£m £m £m £m
Trade creditors 120 88 116 86
Taxation and social security 02 02 0.2 02
Amounts owed to other Group companies - 03 c3
Accruals 145 120 114 87
Deferred income 340 337 299 300
Value added tax - 21 - 21
Other creditors 47 66 42 61
654 634 576 56 0
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14. CREDITORS (CONTINUED)

Amounts falling due after more than cne year Group Canal & River Trust
31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14 31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14
£m £m £m £m
Loan from Port of London Properties Ltd 1289 129 129 129
Deferred ncome 15 17 15 17
Other creditors 0.5 28 09 3z
149 17 4 153 178

The £12 9m loan from Port of London Properties Ltd is at a floating rate of interest being 1% above the Bank of England
base rate The loan was unsecured as at 31 March 2015 but there 1s an outstanding commitment to the lender to provide

secunty to a value that 1s satisfactory to the lender The POLP loan 1s repayable in January 2019

The Trust has interests in a number of property development joint ventures that are stand-alone businesses and are
independently funded with external bank debt without recourse to the Trust In each of the joint ventures an assessment 15
made whether the interest payments on borrowings should be hedged having regard to the quantum of the debt, the penod
over which the borrowings are planned to be outstanding and the sensitivity of the project to changes in interest rates
There was no interest rate hedging in place in the joint venutres at 31 March 2015 At 31 March 2015, Group share of total
bank borrowings in joint ventures was £11 9m (2014 £8 2m)

15 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Group At 1 Apnl 2014 Pad Charged Released At 31 March 2015

£m £m £m £m £m
Personal injury claims 17 {0 5) 13 (0 9) 16
Third party contractual claims 04 {0 1) 03 02 04
Redundant property 06 {0 3) 0 3) -
Operational property reparrs 09 {09 - -
Canal & River Reinsurance 35 {07) 09 {07) 30
Orther provisions 10 {0 B) 02 - 07

81 (30) 27 @ 57
Canal & River Trust At 1 April 2014 Paid Charged Released At 31 March 2015

£m £m £m £m £m
Personal njury clarms 17 {0 5) 13 09 16
Third party contractual clams Q4 o1y 03 C2) a4
Redundant property 06 (03) - (03) -
Operational property repairs 09 09 -
Other provisions 10 {0 5} 02 - o7

46 23 18 (14 27

Provisions are recognised when the condiions of FRS 12 Prowvisions, contingent habiihies and assets have been met
The timing of when provisions will be settled ts generally uncertain due the nature of the relevant claims and obligations
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15 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Personal injury claims

The provision relates to indviduals who have suffered a personal injury whilst on or using the Trust's property, and represents
the Trust's best estimate of the legal fees and compensation that could be incurred These prowvisions are in addition to
provisions accounted in Canal & River Reinsurance (see below)

Third party and contractual claims
The provision relates to contracts the Trust has entered into with third parties, and represents the additional costs to the Trust
that could be incurred upon completion of the contract

Redundant property -

The provision relates to properties which are surplus to requirements The provision represents the future net commitments in
order to discharge the Trust's hability relating to the estmated cost of subletting within the remaining operating lease period
During the year all outstanding habilities were settfed

Operational property repairs
The Waterways Trust has prowided for reparrs to operational buldings in respect of legal and constructive obligatons in existence
prior to the acquistion by the Canal & Rver Trust on 26 July 2012 Dunng the year all outstanding obligations were completed

Canal & Rwver Reinsurance
The provision relates lo specific property, motor and public iability claims potentally brought against the Group held in

Canal & River Reinsurance Limited

Other provisions
These are provisions which fall outside of the categones described above

16 MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Group
Asset Restncted
General Designated Dowry Income
Fund Funds Subsidianes Funds Other Funds Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 1 April 2014 171 41 22 505 5206 13 5958
Net incoming resources (30) . 138 i 13 01 12 2
(including joint ventures)
Gift ad recevable and
dividends from subsidianes* 128 ’ (16 1) . 33 i .
Transfer to Pension
Accumulation Reserve* (20) 20 . ) : - )
Other transfers between funds” 29 - 02 (C 8} A2 5) - -
PFP t;::)ntnbutlon to Pension (5 0} i i ) 50 i )
Fund
P

ension Fund current serice . 08 A i i ©8) i .
cost in excess of contributions
Total return on diversified
investment funds applied 18 ’ ’ i (3 i )
Other recognised gains ) 07 21 9 X 309 ) 521
and losses
Taxation charge - - 01 - - - O 1)
As at 31 March 2015 249 68 212 49 9 5558 14 6600
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16. MOVEMENT IN FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Canal & River Trust

I

. 1

Asset Restricted
General Designated Dowry Income
Fund Funds Subsidianies Funds Other Funds Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2014 177 41 - 505 498 0 13 569 6
Net imcoming resources (34) - - - 53 o1 20
Gift ad recevable and
128 - - - 33 - 161
dvidends from subsidianes*
Transafer to Pension 20) 20 ] i i ] i
Accumulation Reserve*
Other transfers between funds* 25 - - (0 6) (19) - -
PFP contribution to Pension 50) i ) . 50 ) .
Fund**
Pension Fund current service o8 ) i i ©8) i i}
cost In excess of contnbutions™
Total return on diversified
1 - . - 13 - -
investment funds appled 3 (3
Qther recognised gains i 07 i i 307 i 314
and losses
As at 31 March 2015 247 68 - 499 536 3 14 6191

* see descniphon of 'Transfers between funds' below
** Pension Funding Partnerstup {PFP) see note 19

The Trustees have agreed how the following funds are managed, taking into account best practice and guidance from the
Charity Commission References to the Grant Funding Agreement are to the Grant Funding Agreement between the Trust
and Defra dated 28 June 2012

Endowment Fund

The Endowment Fund s a restricted reserve and comprises the net value of the endowment assets and labilihes transferred
to the Trust on 2 July 2012 by the UK Government The endowment comprises the Protected Assets as defined in the Grant
Funding Agreement less the value of the habilities for the Trust’s borrowings and pension fund liabilities that are effectively
secured on the endowment assets and less any other capital liabilities and creditors Income arising from these net assets

1s available to be spent on the chartable activities of the Trust

The Endowmeént Fund includes the net value of any unrealised revaiuation surpluses that have ansen on the endowment since
the transfer and the net value of funds held in reserve for waterway infrastructure asset dowries where such funds have been
nvesied mio assets contained wittun the Protected Endowment

The amount of retained post acquisition reserves held in subsidiary companies that are held as investments within the
Protected Endowment are shown 1n a separate reserve fund

General Fund
The General Fund comprises funds that are accumulated from surpluses of net income resources that are held specifically

to fund the permitted activities of the Trust, the Trust's other charitable objects, and the Trust's statutory obligations, in each
case net of the support costs and cost of ancillary activities that support, facilitate or promote that expenditure
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16 MOVEMENT IN FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Pension Accumulation Designated Fund

The Pension Accumulahon Fund comprises funds that are designated from the General Fund to create a fund for the purpose
of funding any deficit that exists on the Waterways Pension Fund n 2031 when the pension funding partnership comes to
an end Funds are transferred from the General Fund to the Pension Accumulation Fund dunng the year Any income ansing

from this designated fund 18 accumulated within the fund

Restricted Income Fund

The Restricted Income Fund compnses funds that have been donated to the Trust with specific restrictions on how the funds
may be applied The purpose of each restricted fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements Restricted donations
of less than £20,000, unless part of a larger project, are reported in aggregate

Transfers between funds

Transfers between funds include gift aid payments from surplus profits and dividends from subsidiary companies to the Trust
fram the protected endowment fund to general fund, the allocation of unapplied total return and net income and expenditure
that has been recognised in the general fund in the SoFA that 1s in respect of protected endowment net assets

Restricted Income Funds

Balance Transfers and

Incoming Resources Transferredto  Balance

Fund Name 1 Apr 14 Acquisiions Resources Expended Other Bodies 31 Mar 15
Canal & River Trust £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Friends Fund 662 (57) 699 (756) - 548
Specific Project Funds

Canal & River Trust funds

Hedgerow Action Plan 49 - 70 (4) 115
National Canal Flood Appeal 32 11 (43) -
Gve a vole a home along the Rufford Canal " o5 - (14) - 11
Memorial Benches 24 - 33 8) - 49
Heritage boat, Ferret, restoration 2 - 24 {2) - 24
Buy and Restore a Volunteer Workboat 2 17 {22) - -
Stratford 2 Stratford 25 (10) - 15
Coast to Coast Canoe Trall - 202 (3) - 199
The Line Arts Project - a5 (84) - 1
Arts Council Funding Pennine - - 84 {102) - (18)
Community Adoption Rochdale

and Huddlt:rsﬁels | i 130 i i 130
River Stort Water Voles - 42 11 (48} - 5
BIG Lottery Burnley - 21 {21} - -
Explorers Web Game - 22 (22} - -
Other Specific Project Funds 205 13 149 (102) - 265
Funds transferred from The Waterways Trust )

Thames Ahead Events 147 - 28 - (175} -
Cotswold Appeal 47 - g - (10) 46
Youth Volunteering 26 (18) 8
Lancaster Northern Reaches 7 {2) , 19
Birmingham Heartlands 19 83 (102) - -
Keeping History Afloat 3 89 (92) - -
Burnley Canal Communities 14 - 18 {29) - 3
Canal Connections East - - 49 (49) - -
Fundraising North West ' - 38 (38) - -
Total Group 1,279 - 1,907 (1,571) (185) 1,430
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16 MOVEMENT IN FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Funds are restricted on the basis of actvity type, activmity within a defined geographical area or on a specific project basis
as indicated by the fund name The funds have been committed to the purpose of the specific appeal or the restnicted fund
Funds will be recorded as expended when they are transferred to meet the relevant expenditure being incurred

Funds transferred from The Waterways Trust are ether awarting drawdown from the specified projects or are in the process
of being allocated to the specified purpose CRT funds are transferred to the relevant project on completion of the specified

works or project outcomes

Restrcted funds wath a balance of less than £20,000 are shown in ohe aggregate total as “Other Specific Project Funds®
In 2014/15 there were 84 (2014 B82) separate funds within this total

Fnends Fund

All donations made to The Trust without any specific local or project specific restnchon are added to the Friends Fund from
which expenditure i1s directed only to waterway maintenance, restoration or education activities

17 ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BY FUND

Net assets are analysed between funds as follows

Unrestricted Restricted Endowment  Total 31 March  Total 31 March
Group Funds Funds Funds 2015 2014
£m Em £m £m £m
Tangible fixed assets 249 - 543 792 80 4
Investments 90 - 634 5 6435 5346
E::tyoer:r_ amounts falling due after i 86 86 .
Net current assets 26 14 335 s 745
eyt (e - 130 (149) 17 4
Provisions (2 6) - (3 1) 57 81)
Pension liability {03) - (87 9) (88 2) {68 2)
Total net assets 317 14 6269 660 0 50958
Unrestricted  Restncted Endowment Total 31 March  Total 31 March
Canal & River Trust Funds Funds Funds 2015 2014
£m £m £m £m £m
Tangible fixed assets 249 - 355 604 817
Investments g5b - 837 1 546 6 453 2
E::tyc::r— amounts falling due after . ) a6 86
Net current assets 25 14 194 233 634
ot oo gy wme ey wa
Provisions 27 - - 27) {4 8)
Pension (hability) / asset {0 3) - {15} (18) 137
Total net assets 3158 14 586 2 6191 569 6
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18 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating lease agreements where the Group 1s lessee

The minimum lease payments due in the following year under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Group Canal & Rver Trust
31 Mar15 31 Mar 14 31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14
Leasehold properhes £m £m £m £m
Length of lease remaining
Within one year - 01 - 01
Within two to five years 03 01 03 o1
In more than five years 10 10 09 09
1.3 12 12 11

During the penod £1 5m (2014 £1 6m) was charged to the SoFA in respect of leasehold property rentals

Group Canal & River Trust
31 Mar15 31 Mar 14 31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14

Leasehold plant and equipment £m £m £m £m
Length of lease remaining
Within cne year 01 o6 - 06
Within two to five years 10 04 10 03
In more than five years - - -

11 10 10 09

Dunng the period £1 3m (2014 £1 5m) was charged to the SoFA in respect of leasehold plant and equipment
Cperating lease agreements where the Group 1s lessor

During the penod the value of rents receivable in the Group was £40 1m (2014 £34 9m) and was £29 1m (2014 £27 7m)
in the Canal & River Trust
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19. PENSION AND OTHER POST - RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Group Canal & River Trust
31Mar15 31Mar14 31 Maris 31 Mar 14
£m £m £m £m
(a) Pension fund {deficit) / surplus (87 9) (67 9) (15 140
{c) Other post-retrement benefits 03 {0 3) 03 03
Employee benefits {88 2) (68 2) (1.8) 137

{a) Pension fund (deficit) / surplus — defined benefit pension

The Trust is the Pnincipal Employer of a funded defined benefit penston scheme known as the Waterways Pension Fund
(“WPF" or the “Scheme”) It remains open to tuture accrual for employees of the Trust and other participating employers who
commenced employment before 1 April 2011, from which date it was closed to new members From 1 Apnl 2011 onwards
all benefits accruing under the Scheme were changed to a career average re-valued earnings basis

Contributions to the Scheme are agreed between the Trust and the Trustees of the WPF, after advice from the Scheme
Actuary, as part of the triennial actuanal valuation of the Scheme The last tnennial valuation of the Scheme was carned out
as al 31 March 2013 As at that date the market value of the Scheme's assets (exciuding members' addmonal voluntary
contributions) amounted to £448 4m and the value placed upen the benefits that had accrued to members was £464 2m The
Scheme was therefore £15 8m n defict and 97% funded on an on-going basis The market value of the Fund's investment

in Canal & River Pension Investments LP (see befow for more details) 1s included within the valuation of the Fund's assets In
addiion, the Fund's Recavery Plan allows for the full potential payment due in 2031 in respect of this investment, which 1s not
fully valued in the Fund's assets, and so the Fund's Trustees require no further contributions to meet the shortfall

The contribution rates for future service accrual were reviewed by the Scheme actuary as part of the 2013 trniennial valuation
and were increased by 2% This increase was shared between the active members and the employer at 15% (previously
14%) for the employer and B% {previously 7%) for the employee These rates took effect from 1 August 2014 CRT
operates a salary sacnifice arrangement that enables employees to sacnfice an amount of salary equal to their pension
contribution in return for the employer increasing its contribution by the same amount The majonty (95%) of employees are
included in the salary sacrifice pension contribution arrangement The employer contributions reported in these accounts
therefore include these addihonal contnbutions tunded by the employees’ salary sacnfice

The next tnennial actuanal valuation will be carned out as at 31 March 2016

On 9 July 2012, the Trust made a special contribution of £106m to the WPF pursuant to the creation of a pension funding
parirrership with the Trust The Scheme invested £106m in Canal & River Pension Investments LP, a hmited partnership
registered in Scotland The Scheme will remain invested in this partnership for up to 19 years until 8 July 2031 at which
point the Scheme's investment will be redeemed The redemption value of the investment will be the lower of £125m or
the valuation deficit in the Scheme at that time, with a mimimum value of £0 01m, as assessed by the Scheme Actuary on a
Technical Provisions basis The Scheme 1s entitled to an annual distribution income from this investment of £5m per annum
In the year to 31 March 2015 the Scheme recewved £5 Om of income from the parinership investment

An accounting judgement has been taken that the Scheme’s interest in the partnership, which i1s a subsidiary of the Trust,
does not represent a plan asset for the purposes of the Group consolidated accounts because 1t Is a financial instrument
issued by the Group and therefore, has not been taken into account in arrving at the Group pension scheme deficit
presented in the Group consolidated financial statements The exclusion of the Scheme’s mnterest in the partnership from
the Scheme's assets results in a deficit of £87 8m in the Group accounts

The valuation of the Scheme uged for FRS17 Retrement benefits disclosures has been based on the most recent actuanal
valuation of the WPF at 31 March 2013 and updated to 31 March 2015 by Barnett Waddingham LLP, professionally quahfied
Scheme Actuary The Trust has incorporated 100% of the babilities of the Scheme, as the liability for any deficit ansing in
respect of other participating employers s either immaterial to the accounts or 1s dealt with by cantractual arrangements
outside the Scheme

90



19 PENSION AND OTHER POST - RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

The key assumptions used are as follows

31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14
Discount rate 3 4% 4 6%
Long-term expected return on scheme assets 34% 57%
Rate of increase in salaries 20% 3 0%
Rate of increase for majorty of pensions in payment and 23% 26%
deferred pensions™
Rate of CPlinflation 23% 2 6%

Tax free cash

Members are assumed to
take 18% of therr pension
as tax free cash

Members are assumed to
take 18% of thewr pension
as tax free cash

Post retirement mortality assumption

105% of S1IPMA (males)
110% of S1PFA (females)
CMI 2014 model,

long-term rate of
improvements 1 25%

105% of S1PMA (males)
110% of S1PFA (females)
CMI 2013 model,

long-term rate of
improvements 1 25%

Using the adopted mortality tables, the future Iife expectancy at the normal retirement age of 63 1s as follows

31 Mar 15 31 Mar 14
Male currently aged 43 255 255
Female currently aged 43 277 276
Male currently aged 63 237 237
Female currently aged 63 257 256

* The rate of increase for the career average re-valued earmings (post April 2011} benefits are capped at 2 5%

The senstvities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below

Assumption

Change 1n assumption

Impact on scheme habilites

Discount rate

Increase/decrease by 0 1%

Decrease/increase by 1 8%

Rate of inflation

Increase/decrease by 0 1%

Increase/decrease by 1 4%

Rate of salary growth

Increase/decrease by 0 1%

Increase/decrease by 0 3%

Rate of mortality

Change long-term improvement

rate to 1 5% pa

H

Increase by 1 3%
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19. PENSION AND OTHER POST - RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Amounts recogmsed in the Consolidated Statement of Financia! Activities (SoFA)

Group
Year to Year to
31 March 2015 31 March 2014
£m £m
Current service cost (6 5) {7 1)
Interest cost (19 6) (19 2)
Expected return on assets 212 204
Amount charged within net incoming resources (4 9) {89
Actuanal losses (25 8) (132
Amount charged within net movement in funds 307 {18 1)

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet at 31 March 2015 and the expected rates of return on scheme assets were

Rates of return Group CRT
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
% % £m £m £m £m
Equities 70 70 169 7 158 2 169 7 158 2
Index hnked gilts 35 30 471 532 471 532
Corporate bonds 4.6 46 916 78 2 91.6 78 2
Property funds - - 43.9 358 439 358
Dwersified growth funds 70 70 399 203 399 203
Investment in property interest in
Canal & River 46 46 - - 889 819
Pension Investments LP
Other growth assets 70 70 70 108 70 108
Cash 26 26 97 54 72 54
Total faw value of assets 408 9 36149 495 3 443 8
:;ﬁz:: ;:::ﬁh‘:s (4968)  (4298) (496 8) (429 8)
(Deficit) / surplus in the scheme (87 9) (67 9) (15) 140

The actual return on the Scheme's assets during the penod was a £51 7m gain (2014 £5 1m gain) for the Group and a

£56 2m gan (2014 £1 6m loss) for the Trust

FRS17 requires all Scheme assets to be valued at fair value for accounting purposes As at 31 March 2015, the farr value of
the Scheme's investment in the partnership was £88 9m (2014 £81 9m) The valuation assumphons required for accounting
purposes, under FRS17 differ from the assumptions used for the Scheme's technical provisions funding assumptions, and as

aresult, under FRS17, the Scheme valuation showed a surplus position at 31 March 2014

Under the terms of the partnership agreement and the Scheme Trust Deed, the Trust 15 unable to recover any surplus that

may anse on the Scheme through a refund from the Scheme
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19 PENSION AND OTHER POST - RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Changes in scheme assets

Group CRT
2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 2013/14
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 3619 362 3 443 8 422 2
Expected return on scheme assets 212 204 252 245
Principal employer contnbutions 107 106 107 106
Member contributions 01 o1 o1 01
Benefits pard and expenses (15 5) (16 2) (15.5) (16 2)
Actuarial gain / {loss) 305 {15 3) 310 26
At 31 March 408 9 3819 495 3 4438
Changes In scheme labilihes
Group & CRT
2014/15 2013/14
£m £m
At 1 April (429 8) {421 7) o
Current service cost (6 5) (7 1) _ 1‘,:,_
Current service costs funded by member contrnibutions wmn [{(eIn )] g
Interest cost (19.6) (19 2) ‘ ‘é
Benefits paid and expenses 155 16 2 &
Actuanal {loss) / gain (56 3) 21 "z'é
At 31 March (496 8) {420 8) <
]
Movement in (deficrt) / surplus in the scheme duning the period %
Group CRT ‘ s_f
2014/15 2013/14 2014/15 201314 o=
£m £m £m £m 'E‘-g'
At 1 April 679) (59 4) 140 05
Expenses recognised in SoFA 49 59 09 {18)
Contributions 107 106 107 106
Actuarial (loss) /gain recognised in SoFA (25 8) (132) (25 3) 47
At 31 March 87 9) (67 9) (15) 140
History of expenence gamns and losses
Group CRT
2014/15  2013/14 2012/13 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Present value of defined benefit obligation (496 8) (425 8) (421 7) (496 8) (420 8) {421 7)
Farr value of scheme assets 408 9 3619 3623 495 3 4438 422 2
(Dehicit} / surplus (87 9) (67 9) {69 4) {15) 140 05
Expenence losses on scheme labilibies 33 {0 B) (12 33 (0 8) {12)
:i:zng:i;l::zmptlons used to value (59 6) 9g (19 4) (59 6) 29 (18 4
Experience adjustments on scheme assets 305 (15 3} 237 310 26 (26 4)
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19 PENSION AND OTHER POST -~ RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

(b) Defined contribution pension plan

The Trust operates a defined contribution pension plan with Standard Life for employees that commenced employment after
31 March 2011 The defined contnibution plan 18 a pension plan under which the Trust pays fixed contnibutions to Standard
Life The Trust has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contnbutions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets
to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior penods The amount of employer
contributions 1s disclosed in note 5 in these accounts There were no material amounts owing or prepaid at 31 March 2015

(c) Other post-retirement benefits

Under the terms of the 1962 Transport Act, employees transferring from the British Transport Commssion to successor
bodies were entitled to retain their reduced cost travel benefits Successor bodies, including the Trust, were made
responsible for procuring the benefits on thewr behalf

Currently 192 (2014 190) pensioners and widows retain entitlement to this benefit A prowision to cover the present value
of the fulure cost of these benefits 1s included in the balance sheet The provision was re-assessed at 31 March 2015 by
independent qualified actuanes using discount rates consistent with those required for pension liabilities under FRS17

Movement in provision during the period Group & CRT
2014/15 2013114
£m £m
Prowvision at 1 Apnl {0 26) (0 22)
Expenses recognised in SoFA {001) (0 01)
Contributions 003 003
Actuarial loss recognised in SoFA - {0 08)
Provision at 31 March (0 24) (0 26)

20 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure for which the Trust had contracted at 31 March 2015 was £0 5m (2014 £0 7m) of which £nmil (2014
£nil} 1s in respect of future expenditure for the purchase, construction, development and enhancement of mvestment property
These commitments fall due within one year

The Trust’s share of capital commitments arising within joint ventures and subsidianes, which had been contracted at 31
March 2015 was £0 02m {2014 £nil)

21 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent habilities ansing from third party clams, valued at £0 4m (2014 £0 6m), are not included in the balance sheet as
it 1s not considered likely that the amounts will fall due for payment

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Trust has considered the disclosure requirements of the SORP for charties and FRS8 Related Party Disclosures and
beheves that the following related party transactions, all of which were made on an arm's length basis, requred disclosure

During the year Partners Capital LLP (“Partners”) were appointed as the Trust’s discretionary fund managers with the

aim of achieving a level of return agreed by the Investment Committee given the Trust's nsk appetite Partners operated
independently within the Trust’s agreed investment guidelines
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22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

As a result certain investments were made into funds which are connected with Clearbell Caprtal LLP (*Clearbell™), a firm
in which Manish Chande (a Trustee and Chair of the Investment Commuittee) 1s a partner Clearbell indirectly provided the
following investment and asset management services

Investment fund and  Investment Investment  Fees earned Beneficiary
relattonship made during value at 31 March In 2014/15
2014/15 2015
Asset management Partners Capital £0 7m £07m £1,400 CP Real
Master Pertfohio C For the penod Estate Fund
invested into CP Real from 19/12/14
Estate Fund (thereof
accrued NIL)
Participation in the Partners Phoenix £0 8m £0 8m £2,000 Project Monza
investment advisory Il fund invested in (Partners have  For the period
committee and jomnt Project Monza in commitied a further from 1/7/14
venture partner which one of the £0 8m on the Trust's (thereof
three joint venture behalfto Project  accrued NIL}
partners I1s a fund Monza but this
managed by Clearbell payment has not yet
Capital LLP been requested from .

tunds already placed
with Partners)

Related party transactions of the above nature are permitted under Article 4 4 3 of the Trust's Articles The Board were not
informed by Partners Capital, our discretionary fund manager, that aggregated funds in which they had invested on behalf
of the Trust had made an investment into these two funds with a connection to Clearbell The Board became aware of these
transactions in May 2015, formally noted them at its meeting on the 18 June 2015 and agreed to their continuation

There are no amounts written off in relation to the above transactions
No other trustees received any remuneration or other benefits from the Trust

Simon Thurley, a trustee, was Chief Executive of English Heritage throughout the year Durning the year the Trust received
contributions totalling £7,392 from English Hentage towards waterways heritage projects

There were no other related party transactions between the Trust and any of the Trustees or executive directors duning
the period

In accordance with FRSB, transactions entered into between the Trust and it's wholly substdiaries are not disclosed
Further detalls on our subsidianes can be found in note 11 to these accounts

Amount receivable Amount receivable

during the penod to / (payable) at

Transactions with joint ventures 31 March 2015 31 March 2015
£m £m

Property sales and investment activity with joint ventures 14 o8
Other significant transactions with joint ventures 03 01
17 09

The table above excludes cagital and loan investments in joint ventures which are detalled in note 11 in these accounts
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL, WATERWAY AND FUND TERMS

Term Where used Explanation

Bridge constructed to provide access across the waterway,
feeder or niver for an adjacent landowner or to maintain a

S1UN000Y 29 110daY ,S991sN4T,

Accommodation bridge Assots Right of Way Such bridges will not be carrying a public road
or a towpath
, A public corporation established by the Transport Act 1962 to
Bé{:f‘h Waterways Board Trusteﬁf report, manage the inland waterways The activities in England & Wales
BW) accounts were transferred to the Trust on 2 July 2012
BWML Incoming resources British Waterways Marinas Limited — a wholly owned subsidiary

of the Trust managing 20 marninas across the UK

Accounting and Reporting by Charties Statement of
Chaniies SORP Accounts Recommended Practice Chartties SORP 2005 — the UK
accounting standard for chares

A tubular, box, piped or arched structure that carries a waterway

Culvert Asset_s or feeder over an obstruction {typically a small watercourse}
Def Trustees' report, Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affars Provides
elra accounts grant funding to the Trust
Designated funds Funds Funds allocated by the Trustees for particular purposes
A major embankment is a constructed earth structure where
Embankment Assets surrounding natural ground level 1s at least 3m below water level
ankmen for a continuous length of at least 200m, or greater than &m at
any point
N | - h | |
Feeder Assels atural and man-made water channels supplying water to canals

and nivers

This 1s the working fund of the Trust It pays for the waterway
General fund Funds maintenance and repairs, day to day operations and national
support and service teams

5175107 Hadey feneily isn.

Grant Funding Agreement between the Trust and Defra dated

\falawnlt:)zfu nding Agreement ;I:::Zt:es report, 28 June 2012 that facilitated the BW transfer to the Trust The
ra agreement provides funding towards the Trust’s activities

These are assets that are held for histoncal, artistic, scientfic,
technological, geophysical or environmental qualities and are

Hertage assets Assets held and maintained principally for ther contribution to knowledge
and culture
Structure designed to raiseflower boats on a waterway by

Lock Assets operation of lock gates May be found singly or in fights In a

starcase fight the top gates of one lock form the bottom gates
of another

The Trust operates museums in Gloucester, Ellesmere Port and
Museums & attractions Accounts Stoke Bruerne as well as visitor centres at the Anderton Boat Lift
and Standedge Tunnel

These are restricted funds for the net assets acquired from
BW by Statutory Transfer as at 2 July 2012 that are within

Protected endowment funds Funds the Protected Endowment as defined in the Defra Grant
Funding Agreement
Pumping station Assets A facility designed to pump water to or from the waterway
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Term Where used Explanation

Sluice Assets A valve mechamsm to allow drainage of a waterway or flood
contral on a river

Statutory transfer :rcl::sc:itss report, The British Waterways Board (Transfer of Functions) Order 2012
Gate spanning waterway or river, that exist for emergency

Stop/Safety/Flood Gates Assets retention of water or to protect property from flooding, including
tidal fluctuations

Towpathfturnover bridge Assets A bridge carrying the towpath from one side of the waterway or
feeder to the other

Tnenmial actuanal valuation Pensions The three-yearly valuation of our penston scheme by a
qualified actuary

Unrestrcted Funds Unrestncted funds are expendable at the discretion of

the Trustees

Waterways Infrastructure Trust

Trustees' Report,
assets

All the waterway assets and structures that comprise the
waterways, towpaths and associated structures are held by the
Trust as trustee in this perpetual trust The objects of this Trust
are to hold, operate and manage the waterway infrastructure
property for public benefit and to use the income from the
property to fund the cost of the Trust's objects

Wer

Asset

Werir whose purpose 1s to convey surplus water away from the
canal A welr on a river navigation 1s used to create and maintain
an adequate depth of water for nawigation
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Trustees, Council, Waterways Partnerships
and Advisory Group Members

Lynne Berry OBE

Currently charr of the Comnussion to the Voluntary Sector and
'Ageing and Breast Gancer Now, Lynne s founder of Public
Benefit, an associate of Civil Exchange and a non-executive director
of Cambridge University Hospitals Foundation Trust Lynne 1s a
Professor at CASS Business School, City University Londen and
has held a number of chief executive posts and served on many
Govemnmaent bodies including the Office of Civil Society Advisory
Board and several Better Regulation Taskforces

John Bridgeman CBE TD DL

Former British Waterways board member and vice-chairman

of the board John has held a number of chief executive posts and
was Director General of Far Trading and a member of the Monopolies
and Mergers Commission John 1s currently Regulator Director and
was a pensions trustee of the British Horseracing Authority, charr

of the Audit and Standards Committes of Warwickshire County
Council, independent Complaints Commussioner for the Direct
Marketing Authonty, an independent consultant in Corporate Strategy,
Competion Policy and Consumer Affars and a longstanding Trustee
of a number of Oxdordshire Charities

Manish Chande

Marish has been in the real estate business for nearly thirty years
and 15 Senicr Partner of Clearbell Capital LLP, a private real estate
group Prewvious posts include board member of Land Secunties
plc, chief executive of Trillum, a company he co-founded, and chief
exaecutive at Imry Merchant Developers Manish ongsnally trained
as a Chartered Accountant and 1s a member of the Institute of
Chartared Accountants in England & Wales and a Fellow of the
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Manish has also been a
trustes of English Heritage and The London Clinic

Jane Cotton

Jane was human resources director and deputy chief executive of
Oxtam for 15 years until end December 2014 Pror to this, she
worked m Departments of Transport and Environment in bath policy
and human resources roles and held resources director posts at the
Chanty Commission and the Department of Environment, Transport
and the Regions In addition to her Trustee role at Canal and River
Trust she 15 now a Trustee of WWF UK and a member of the Alumni
Adwvisory Board of Cambndge Unwersity

John Dodwell

John qualified as a chartered accountant before moving into
corporate finance and corporate faw He 1s a former finance director
or charr of several property compantes (including jomnt ventures}),
has been a trustee of other charities (including dealing with
investments) Since 1961, he has been a member of the Inland
Waterways Association {of which he was general secretary
1970-73) John is the former charr of the Commercial Boat
Operators Association He owns an histonc narrowboat tug in
which he has travelled over many parts of the waterways netwaork

Frances Done

Formerly charr of the Youth Justice Board for England and Wales,
Frances has held a number of chief executive posts including at
Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council and Manchester 2002

(the company responsible for orgarmising Manchester Commonwealth
Games) Frances was also managing director for Local Government,
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Housing and Crirminal Justice at the Audit Commission and intenim
Director General of tha Royal British Legion A keen boater, Frances
was also char of The Waterways Trust from 2003 - 2012

Tom Franklin

Tom 1s chief executive of Think Global Previously he was chief
executive of the Ramblers and of Living Streets Tom also spent
twelve years as a local authonty councillor, iIncluding a period as
council leader and was a member of the Independent Panel on
the future direction of forestry and woodland policy in England

Ben Gordon

Ben 18 a non-execulive director of Britwic Plc and of St Ives Plc

He 1s also on the Board of Powerleague Ltd Previously he was
chief executive of Mothercare Plc for nine years and SVP and
managing director of the Disney Store, Europe and Asia Pacific
Prior to that he had senior management posrhions in WHSmith Plc
and L'Oreal SA in the UK, USA and France Ben has an MBA from
INSEAD and 15 a Member of the Institubon of Crvil Engineers

Tony Hales CBE (chair)

Formerly chairman of British Waterways, Tony 1s also charr of the
Old Royal Naval College, Greenwich and non-executive director

of Caprtal and Regonal plc and charman of NAAFI Pension Fund
Trustees Previous posts include charman of Workspace Group

plc , chief executive of Alled Domacq, a non-executive director of
HSBC Bank plc, Welsh Water ple and Aston Villa ple, and chairman
of NAAF| He is trustee of Welsh National Opera and of Services
Sound and Vision Corporation

Allan Leaghton

Formerly CEQ of Asda Plc and charr of the Royal Mail, Alan helds

a number of non-executive chairmanships including The Co-op,
Matalan, Entertainment One Plc, Pace Pic, Office Ltd and 1s deputy
chairman at Pandora AS He was also charr of Race for Opportunity
and Ambassador for Pnnce Charles in Business in the Community
Allan attended the Advanced Management Programme at Harvard and
has honorary degrees from Cranfield and an honorary Fellowship from
Uruversity of Lancashire He 1s also patron of Breast Cancer Care

Simon Thurley )

Simon 1s an histonan specialising n English architectural history
and has written many books and presented television programmes
on the subject Formerly chief executive of English Heritage,
previous posts also include Curator of the Historic Royal Palaces
and Director of the Museum of London

Steve Shine OBE

Steve 1s chairman of a number of businesses, including Anesco

Lid and Solar Lid, he 1s also a member of Veolia's advisory

Board, recently been the intenm CEQ of Veolia Waler Steve was
previously Thames Water’s chief aperating officer and member of
the Main Board from 2007-2012 Previous roles include managing
director of London Electricity Contracting, a member the Executive
Board of London Electricity {Later EDF) and managing director of
24Seven, a joint venture he helped form between Eastern Electricity
and London Electncity Steve was also CEO of SGB UK He was
awarded the OBE by the Queen for services to industry in 2011



Council {as at 31 March 2015)

Partnerships (as at 31 March 2015)

In add:tion to the members listed below, the twelve Partnership All Wales Mark Lang {Char)
chars also sit on Council David Colling
Donna Coyle
Nominating organisations Andrew Dakin
Ruth Hall
David Kent The Angling Trust Davic Swallow
Paul Owen British Canoeing Russell Todd
Country Land Central Shires Charlotte Atkins (Chair)
Charles Trotman & Business Will Chapman
Association Brian Hull
Institute of Beryl McDowall
John Yates Histonic Building Andy Oughton
Conservation Geoff Reynolds
Local G t
Clir Jim Harker ocal taovernmen lan Wykes
Association East Midlands Danny Brennan {Charr)
Railway & Canal Matthew Easter
Peter Brown
Historical Society Valerie Holt
David Gibson Ramblers Chns Page
S for th David Pull
Rafid Al Khaddar oo for the avid TuTen
Environment Shirley Rogers
Martyn Brunt Sustrans Robin Stonebridge
Mike Pal Waterway Recovery Amanda Turner
e Faimer Group Andy Wilkinson
Welsh Local Glyn Williams
Alison Ward © !
Government Katherine Wilson
Paul Wikinson The Wildlife Trusts Kennet & Avon Tamsin Phipps {Char)

Co-Opted
Peter Hugman
Chloe Donovan

Elected
Ivor Caplan Private Boating
Ann Farrell Private Boating
Clive Henderson Private Boating
Vaughan Welch Private Boating

Rob Dean

Emma Fearnley

Terry Fell

dohn Inman

Alistarr Millington

Ken Olver

Richard Watson

Londen

Sir Brian Fender (Chair)

Judith Adams

Terry Anss

Sacha Austin

Angela Clarke

Jim Crooks

Tomas Geovert

Anthony Matts

Business Boating

Roger James

Nigel Stevens

Business Boating

Beth Kennedy

Chris Bailey

Employee
Representative

.

Michael Polledn

Geraldene Wharton

Ray Whitehouse
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Manchester & Walter Menzes (Gha) South East John Best (Char)
Pennine Ken Atack
Tayo Adebowale David Cook
lan Banks Ann Davies
Keith Barnes Kathryn Dodington
Graham Birch Cath Fincher
Ray Butler Lynda Payton
Chnsg Findiey Dick Pilkinton
Juban Holder Chrig Stanley
Kate Hughes Andrew Taylor
Keith Sexton South Wales &
Nigel Stevens Severn David Hagg (Char)
Jon Stopp Julian Atkins
lain Taylor Lois Frances
North East Mark Penny {Chair) Edward Helps
Jeanmie Beadle Phil Hughes
Enc Bootland Alasdar Kirkpatrick
Hilary Brooke Robert Moreland
Gerant Coles David Wheeler
Chns Hawkesworth West Midlands Peter Mathews CMG (Chaur)

Jon Kendall

Phil Baterman

Emily Lindsay

Stephen Burt

Dawnd Lowe

{vor Caplan

Trevor Roberts

Karen Creavin

Peter Scott

Len Cresswelll

North Wales & Borders

Brenda Harvay {Chair)

Nick Crombie

Campbell Boyle

Graham Fisher

Mike Carter

Yvonne Giligan

Sue Cawson

Ben Seal

Belinda Daenport

Laura Shoaf

Gillian Edwards

Vaughan Welch

Chns Koral

Neil Wyatt

Sara Mogel!

Alan Platt

Nicoia Sad

Barry Stamp

John Yates

North West

Bob Pointing {Chair)

Richard Atkinson

Peter Jardan

Mike Macklin

Nick Mead

Peter Rowlinson

Audrey Smrth

Barbara Trencher

Tirm Webber

Lesley Woodbridge
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Advisory Groups (as at 31 March 2015)

Nawgation Michael Carter (Charr)

Arts on the Waterways  Jonathan Watkins (Chair) Sue Cawson

lan Banks John Bayhs

Tamsin Ddllon David Fletcher

Claire Doherty lan Harrnison

Mark Dunhull Malcom Blundell

Deirdre Figueiredo Kevin East

Manick Govinder Tamsin Phipps

Keith Khan Vaughan Welch

Marianne McNamara Dawd Gibson

Judith Pafmer Martyn Brunt

Megan Piper Moorings/Licensing Mke Annan (Char)

Lleucu Sencyn Paul Le Bligue

Tracy Warr Beryl McDowall

Sarah Weir Timothy Nelson Parker
Environmental Bruce Lascelles Mark Walton

Allison Crofts Clive Henderson

Rob Jarman Ann Farrell

Mike Dobson Volunteanng Justin Davis-Smith (Chair)

Colin Fenn Chnis Kay

Arlin Rickard Gennie Franklin

Rob Cunningham Georgia Boon

Rafid Al Khaddar Mike Palmer
Freight Dawvid Quarmby {Chair) Rosie Cotgreave

David Lowe Helen Trmbrell

Heather McLaughiin Jon Stopp

lan Wainwnght Youth Engagement Chloe Donovan (Chair)

James Hookham Gilian Bolt

Mark Grimshaw-Smith Jon Boagey

Mike Garratt Danny Brennan
Heritage Sir Neil Cossons (Chair) Sarah Edwards

Alan Baxter Prof Nicholas Gair

Edward Holland David Clark

Jane Kennedy

John Yates

Laurence Newman

Peter Brown

Stephen Hughes

Nationat Angling

David Kent {Chair)

Dave Turner

Dick Pilkinton

Erc Bootland

Glyn Willams

John Castle

Poter Fieldhouse

Rod Bracey

Terry Wnght

Tony Campbell
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Gifts & donations

Woe are very grateful to the thousands

of dedicated volunteers, scout groups,
youth groups, canal societies, clubs and
organisations that we have worked with
over the year These unpaid hours have
helped to make our work poasible Thank
you also to everyone who has joned us
as a Friend of the Trust and the following
indwiduals and orgamisatinos for their
invaluable ¢contnbutions and funding
Individuals £2,000 — 4,999

Ms Lara Atkin

Ms Sheila Cook

Miss Viv Davies

Mr Michael Barrow

Mr Steve Bougourd

Mrs Denige McColl

Mrs Joanne Colle

Mrs Mane Ostovar

Mrs Penelope Parker

Mrs Sandra Seal

Ms Amanda Carton

Ms Helen Gooding

Ms Helen Tomkins

Mr Robert McNee

Individuals E5,000+

The Desmond Foundation

Mr Tony Hales

Mr Ty Comfort

Mr Dawvid Alderslade

Dr Philippa Moreton

Chantable trusts

The Barton Trust

Clark Bradbury Charitable Trust

Esmee Farbairn Foundation

Garlield Weston Foundation

The Langtree Trust

The Michael Davies Charitable Settlement
The Radcliffe Trust

The Ratchff Foundation

The Richard Rogers Chartable Settlement

The Rogers Strk Harbour & Partners
Chantable Foundaton

The Rowlands Trust
The Summerfield Charitable Trust

The Thousandth Man — Richard Burns
Chantable Trust

Tower Hill Trust

The Wilmcote Charitrust

Grant-making bodies, landfill operators,
environmental trusts, local authorities,
lottery etc (£1,000+)

Aim — Association of Independent Museums
Albert Dack Company Ltd

Arts Council England

Aylesbury Vale District Council
Berkhamstead Town Council

Big Lottery Fund

Birmingham City Council

Blackbumn With Darwen Borough CGouncil

Buckinghamshire Community

Burnley Borough Council
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Calderdale Metropoliton Borough
Cheshire East Council

Cheshire West & Chester Council
Countryside Council For Wales
Countryside Nepiune LLP
Coventry City Council

CTC

Dacorum Borough Council

Department for Communities & Local
Government

Derbyshire Environmental Trust Ltd
Downing Property Services Ltd
Dudley MB C

English Hertage

Environment Agency

Farrbriar Developments (Salford)
Gemeente Eindhoven

Groupement D'interet Pubhc
Harlow Health Centres Trust
Heritage Lottery Fund

Heritage Lottery Fund South West
Hertiordshire County Council
INTERREG IVB NWE

IWA Lancashire & Cumbria Branch
Kier MG Ltd

Lancashire Environment Fund
Liverpool Vision Ltd

London Borough Of Brent

London Legacy



Manchester City Council

Milton Keynes Council

Matural England

Natural Resources Wales
Northamptonshire County Council
Ops North Wales & Borders Waterway
Ops North West Waterway

Oxford Crty Council

Peel Land & Property (Ports No 3) Ltd
Pocklington Canal Amenity Society
Powys County Council

Province de Hainaut

Provincie Waest-Vlaanderen
Rochdale Metro Borough Council
Royal London Mutual Ins Soc Ltd
Savills (UK) Limted

Sefton Metro Borough Council
Severn Rivers Trust

SITA Kirklees

Somerset County Council

South Kesteven Distnct Council
South Lakeland Distnct Councd
Statfordshire Wildlfe Trust
Sustrans

The Inland Waterways Association
The Saintbury Trust

The Waterways Trust Scotland
The Wildlife Trust for Birmingham

Tipperary County Council

Town Council of Todmorden
Transport for Greater Manchester
Transport for London

Veoha Enviromental Trust

Visit Wales

Voies Nawvigables de France

Ward Hadaway Soiicrtors
Waterrecreatis Nederiand

Welsh Office H Ways Directorate
Waest Berkshire Distnct Council
West Lancs Dist Council

West Yorkshire Combined Authonty
Wiltshire Council

Woiverhampton City Council
Worcestershire County Councit
Wrexham County Borough Council

We are dehg_hted to have recerved
support from the following companies

Bank of Amenca Mernll Lynch
Barclays

Bleomberg

British Land

Brother International
BNY Melton

cal

CPC Cwils

Drifters

Express Group
Fountans

FMC
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Gailford Try

Google

Hyder Consulting

Kier

Mace Construction

Marks and Spencer
McDonalds {Enfield)

NEC3

North Midlands Construction
ocs

Players of Pacple's Postcode Lottery
River Canal Rescue
Salesforce Foundation
Sport England

Thwares Brewery

United Utlhes

Yorkshire Water
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Patron
HRH The Prince of Wales

Chairman

Tony Hales

Deputy Chairman

Lynne Berry

Executive Team

Richard Parry, Chief Executive

Stuart Mills, Property Director

Vince Moran, Operatons & Asset Management Director
Philip Ridal, Finance Director and Company Secretary
Simon Salem, Marketing & Fundrasing Director

Nigel Cadman, Head of HR (from September 2014)

Heather Clarke, Head of Strategy & Pianning (from July 2014)
Jackie Lewrs, General Counsel

lan Regers, Head of Customer Services (from February 2015)

_The Trust’s Advisors

Bankers

Natwest Bank Plc
City of London Office
PO Box 122581
Princes Street
London

EC2R 8PA

Independent auditors
Grant Thornton UK LLP
No 1 Whitehall Riverside
Leeds

West Yorkshire

LS1 4BN

Prcture credits
P17 Sonia Rolt - Harry Arnold
P31 Arts on the waterways in Wales — Tom Maloney
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Canal & River Trust
First Floor North
" Station House
500 Elder Gate
Milton Keynes
MKS 1BB

T: 0303 040 4040

E: customer.services@canalandrivertrust.org.uk
¥ @CanalRiverTrust

f www.facebook.com/canalrivertrust

The Canal & River Trust is a chartable company limited by
guaraniee registered in England & Wales with company number
7807276 and charity number 1146782,

All information corract at the time of printing.

Cover Image:
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Companies House

COMPANY NAME: CANAL & RIVER TRUST
COMPANY NUMBER: 07807276

Information was administratively removed from the accounts on 28/09/2015
as it contained unnecessary material




